Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form C)

Charron Favreau, S.P.C.
4682 Calle Bolero Unit B
Camarillo, CA 93012
http://chareau.us/

Up to $599,999.70 in Common Stock at $2.55
Minimum Target Amount: $9,998.55

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose yvour
entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering,
including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or
adequacy of this document.

The U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the
offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission
has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from registration.

In the event that we become a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we intend to take advantage of
the provisions that relate to "Emerging Growth Companies” under the JOBS Act of 2012, including electing to delay
compliance with certain new and revised accounting standards under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,



Company:

Company: Charron Favreau, S.P.C.

Address: 4682 Calle Bolero Unit B, Camarillo, CA 93012
state of Incorporation: WA

Date Incorporated: February 11, 2019

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,998.55 | 3,921 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $599,999.70 | 235,294 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: 82,55

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $499.80

*Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See Bonus info below,

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy, Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEO"), or his or her successor,
as the Subscriber's true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities, (ii} give and receive notices and
communications, (iil) execute any instrument or document that the CEQ determines is necessary or appropriate in the
exercise of its authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the CEO
for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are
coupled with an interest. Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the Subscriber is an
individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity,
will survive the merger or reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However, the Proxy
will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act of 1933 cover the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a registration
statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock.

loinder to Shareholder Agreement
Shareholder Agreements. Execution of this Subscription serves as a Joinder Agreement whereby the Subscriber, as an
“Investor” thereunder, agrees to the terms of, and becomes a party to, the Company's First Amended & Restated

shareholders Agreement dated March 28, 2024, and referred to as "Shareholder Agreement’. Please refer to a
summarization of these rights in the Company Securities section of the Offering Circular.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses™

Lovalty Bonus

As you are a Previous Investor in Chareau, you are eligible for additional 20% bonus shares.
Time-Based Perks

Early Bird 1: Invest $1,000+ within the first 72 hours and receive 10% bonus shares

Early Bird 2: Invest 35,000+ within the first week and receive 15% bonus shares

Earlv Bird 3: Invest $10,000+ within the first two weeks and receive 20% bonus shares

Early Bird 4: Invest $25,000+ within the first two weeks and receive 25% bonus shares
Amount-Based Perks

Bronze: Invest $1,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store and future tasting
room for 1 yvear

Silver: Invest $5,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store and future tasting
room for 1 vear + 5% bonus shares

Gold: Invest $10,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store and future tasting
room for 1 vear + 10% bonus shares

Double Gold: Invest $25,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store and future



tasting room for 1 vear + 15% bonus shares

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in the same offering that meets the
minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks will not be granted if an investor submits multiple investments that,
when combined, meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

Crowdfunding investments made through a self-directed IRA cannot receive non-bonus share perks due to tax laws. The
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) prohibits self-dealing transactions in which the investor receives an immediate, personal

financial gain on investments owned by their retirement account. As a result, an investor must refuse those non-bonus
share perks because they would be receiving a benefit from their IRA account.

The 10% StartEngine Venture Club Bonus

Charron Favreau S.P.C. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are
eligible for the StartEngine Venture Club.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For
example, if you buy 100 shares of Charron Favreau 5.P.C. common stock at $2.55 / share, you will receive 110 shares of
common stock, meaning vou'll own 110 shares for $255. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor’s eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority if
they are on a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to
invest should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses based on the amount invested and
the time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors will also receive the Venture Club bonus, and the Lovalty Bonus in
addition to the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

Charron Favreau 5.P.C. is a beverage company that produces craft spirits in Camarillo, CA. We operate our own distilled
spirits plant, produce and market spirits products, most notably Chareau Aloe Liqueur, and sell those products to third party
distributors and retailers across the United States. Our company was originally formed in 2011 as Charron Favreau LLC. Our
licensing, IP, trademark, distribution contracts, leases, and many other material contracts are still in the name of Charron
Favreau LLC. In 2019, Charron Favreau, 5.P.C. was formed to further expand and develop our business as the parent
company, and all Charron Favreau LLC members have signed over their shares on a 1:1 basis to Charron Favreau, 8.P.C.
Charron Favreau LLC now operates as a wholly owned subsidiary.

Competitors and Industry

We operate in the spirits industry as a craft spirit producer. A craft spirit producer can be described as an independently-
owned and operated facility that uses any combination of traditional and/or innovative techniques such as fermenting,
distilling, re-distilling, blending, infusing or warehousing to create products with a unique flavor profile.

Current Stage and Roadmap

We launched our first product, Chareau, in 2015. Chareau is now available in 40 states across the U.S. using third party
distributors to sell our products to retailers, bars, and restaurants. Over the next year, we will continue to grow and focus on
Chareau as a bar staple and increase our consumer marketing to build market share in the e-commerce and retail channels.
In 2025, we plan to open a new distillery and tasting room in Santa Barbara, CA that would allow direct-to-consumer sales
and a channel for us to expand our portfolio of products.

The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: Kurt Charron
Kurt Charron's current primary role is with the [ssuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

& Position: CEO, Director, Secretary, and Founder
Dates of Service: August, 2011 - Present
Responsibilities: Kurt is the Founder and CEQ, Kurt receives an annual salary of $200,000 and is a principal security
holder.



Name: Collin Bauer
Collin Bauer's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

* Position: Director
Dates of Service: July, 2024 - Present
Responsibilities: All corporate powers are exercised by or under the authority of, and the business and affairs of this
Corporation shall be managed under the direction of, the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided by its
Articles of Incorporation.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Emplovyer: Gallo
Title: Director - Strategy & M&A
Dates of Service: July, 2023 - Present
Responsibilities: Leading Gallo's M&A and Corporate Strategy across its Global Wine, Spirits, and Beer businesses.

Mame: Garrett Scott Greenburg

Garrett Scott Greenburg's current primary role is with FarPoint Venture Law . Garrett Scott Greenburg currently services
Less than 5 hours hours per week in their role with the Issuer.,

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

& Position: Assistant Secretary & Director
Dates of Service: March, 2019 - Present

Responsibilities: Assist the Secretary and CEOQ with corporate compliance, G. Scott Greenburg is compensated hourly,
through his firm Farpoint Venture Law, for his contributions. G. Scott Greenburg's primary job is at Farpoint Venture
Law.

Other business experience in the past three years:

& Emplover: FarPoint Venture Law
Title: Founder/Attorney
Dates of Service: April, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Legal Counsel. The Company has engaged the law firm, FarPoint Venture Law PC, to serve as the
Company's outside general counsel, which may include, annual compensation or consideration in excess of $120,000.

Name: Helen Diaz
Helen Diaz's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Co-Founder / VP of Sales & Advocacy
Dates of Service: April, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Management of all distributor relations and retail sales.

Mame: Robert Loitman

Robert Loitman’s current primary role is with L&O Consulting. Robert Loitman currently services 15 hours per week in their
role with the [ssuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

& Position: Controller (Independent Contractor)
Dates of Service: February, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Management of company bookkeeping, invoicing, bill payments, and financial records.

Other business experience in the past three years:



¢ Emplover: L&0O Consulting
Title: Owner
Dates of Service: [anuary, 2005 - Present
Responsibilities: Business consulting, bookkeeping, and financial reporting

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial condition. The company is
still subject to all the same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as
hacking and the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more
developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, "us”, “our”, or the “Company™) involves a high degree of risk and
should only be considered by those who can afford the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any
securities should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them to indefinitely
retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the Company should research thoroughly any offering before making an
investment decision and consider all of the information provided regarding the Company as well as the following risk
factors, in addition to the other information in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not intended, and shall
not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial, financial, and other risks inherent in the investment in the
Company.

b

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet its projections. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to find sufficient demand for its product or service, that people think it's a better option than a competing product or
service, or that we will be able to provide a product or service at a level that allows the Company to generate revenue, make
a profit, or grow the business.

Any valuation is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that are independently valued
through market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess, may not be
exact, and vou may risk overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on the securities you purchase. More importantly, there are a limited number of established
markets for the resale of these securities. As a result, if vou decide to sell these securities in the future, vou may not be able
to find, or may have difficulty finding, a buyer, and vou may have to locate an interested buyer when you do seek to resell
your investment. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the industry. However, that may never happen or it
may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

Your investment could be illiquid tor a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on how you can resell the securities vou receive. More importantly, there are limited established
markets for these securities. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able to find a
buyer. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the same or a similar industry. However, that may never
happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

The Company may undergo a future change that could affect your investment

The Company may change its business, management or advisory team, IP portfolio, location of its principal place of
business or production facilities, or other change which may result in adverse effects on vour investment. Additionally, the
Company may alter its corporate structure through a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or other restructuring of its current
corporate entity structure. Should such a future change occur, it would be based on management's review and
determination that it is in the best interests of the Company.

Your information rights are limited with limited post-closing disclosures

The Company is required to disclose certain information about the Company, its business plan, and its anticipated use of
proceeds, among other things, in this offering. Early-stage companies may be able to provide only limited information
about their business plan and operations because it does not have fully developed operations or a long history to provide
more disclosure. The Company is also only obligated to file information annually regarding its business, including financial
statements. In contrast to publicly listed companies, investors will be entitled only to that post-offering information that is
required to be disclosed to them pursuant to applicable law or regulation, including Regulation CF. Such disclosure
generally requires only that the Company issue an annual report via a Form C-AR. Investors are generally not entitled to



interim updates or financial information.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company is offering Common Stock in the amount of up to $600,000.00 in this offering, and may close on any
investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the
future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the Company
itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds
sought, it will have to find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.

Our capital needs in the future will depend upon factors such as our rate of growth, inventory requirements, market
acceptance of our products and any other new products we launch, the success of our independent distributors and our
production, marketing and sales costs. None of these factors can be predicted with certainty. We may need substantial
additional debt or equity financing in the future for which we currently have no commitments or arrangement. We cannot
assure you that any additional financing, if required, will be available or, even if it is available that it will be on terms
acceptable to us. If we raise additional funds by selling securities, the ownership of our existing shareholders will be diluted.
Any inability to obtain required financing could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact vour investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in the future, which may reduce the
value of your investment in the Company. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences, and
limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to
the holders of common stock or other securities. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of
your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per security,

Management's Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the
application and allocation of the proceeds of this offering. The Use of Proceeds described below is an estimate based on our
current business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved
for one category to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are
hypothetical and are based on management’s best estimate of the probable results of our operations and may not have been
reviewed by our independent accountants. These projections are based on assumptions that management believes are
reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and such variances may be
material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or immediate family members
Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the Company {or their immediate family
members) may make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on

the campaign page.

Reliance on a single service or product

All of our current services are variants of one type of service and/or product. Relying heavily on a single service or product
can be risky, as changes in market conditions, technological advances, shifts in consumer preferences, or other changes can
adversely impact the demand for the product or service, potentially leading to revenue declines or even business failure.

Supply Chain and Logistics Risks

The availability of raw materials, transportation costs, and supply chain disruptions can all impact the ability to
manufacture and distribute products or services, leading to lost revenue or increased costs. Products and services that are
not available when customers need them can lead to lost sales and damage to the brand's reputation.

Quality and Safety of our Product and Service

The quality of a product or service can vary depending on the manufacturer or provider. Poor quality can result in customer
dissatisfaction, returns, and lost revenue. Furthermore, products or services that are not safe can cause harm to customers
and result in liability for the manufacturer or provider. Safety issues can arise from design flaws, manufacturing defects, or
IMproper use.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Common Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them. However, you will be part of the minority
shareholders of the Company and therefore will have a limited ability to influence management’s decisions on how to run
the business. You are trusting in management's discretion in making good business decisions that will grow your



investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management's discretion. You are buying securities as a minority holder, and therefore must trust the
management of the Company to make good business decisions that grow vour investment.

Insufficient Funds

The Company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating needs and fulfill its plans, in which case
it may cease operating and result in a loss on your investment. Even if we sell all the Common Stock we are offering now,
the Company may need to raise more funds in the future, and if unsuccessful in doing so, the Company will fail. Even if we
o make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might result in your investment in the Company being
worth less, if later investors have better terms than those in this offering.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may not have the benefit of information
that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine instruct the escrow agent to disburse
offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors.
All early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommon for material changes
to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’ businesses, plans, or prospects, sometimes with little or no notice. When
such changes happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C with the SEC, and
investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their
money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have
no such right.

Non-accredited investors may not be eligible to participate in a future merger or acquisition of the Company and may lose a
portion of their investment

Investors should be aware that under Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933 if they invest in a company through
Regulation CrowdFunding and that company becomes involved in a merger or acquisition, there may be significant
regulatory implications. Under Rule 145, when a company plans to acquire another and offers its shares as part of the deal,
the transaction may be deemed an offer of securities to the target company's investors, because investors who can vote (or
for whom a proxy is voting on their behalf) are making an investment decision regarding the securities they would receive.
All investors, even those with non-voting shares, may have rights with respect to the merger depending on relevant state
laws. This means the acquirer’s “offer” to the target’s investors would require registration or an exemption from
registration (such as Reg. D or Reg. CF), the burden of which can be substantial. As a result, non-accredited investors may
have their shares repurchased rather than receiving shares in the acquiring company or participating in the acquisition.
This may result in investors® shares being repurchased at a value determined by a third party, which may be at a lesser value
than the original purchase price. Investors should consider the possibility of a cash buyout in such circumstances, which
may not be commensurate with the long-term investment they anticipate.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expect

Our growth projections are based on the assumption that with an increased advertising and marketing budget, our products
will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new
products will fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to achieve signiticant sales
and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies that currently have products on the market and/or various respective
product development programs. They may have much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources
than us. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or superior products
than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete
or that the products developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be
assumed that competition will intensify.

Intense Market Competition

The market in which the company operates may be highly competitive, with established players, emerging startups, and
potential future entrants. The presence of competitors can impact the company’s ability to attract and retain customers,
gain market share, and generate sustainable revenue, Competitors with greater financial resources, brand recognition, or
established customer bases may have a competitive advantage, making it challenging for the company to differentiate itself
and achieve long-term success.

Vulnerability to Economic Conditions

Economic conditions, both globally and within specific markets, can significantly influence the success of early-stage
startups. Downturns or recessions may lead to reduced consumer spending, limited access to capital, and decreased demand
for the company’s products or services. Additionally, factors such as inflation, interest rates, and exchange rate fluctuations
can aftect the cost of raw materials, operational expenses, and profitability, potentially impacting the company's ability to
operate.



Uncertain Regulatory Landscape

Due to the nature of the market the business operates within, the potential introduction of new laws or industry-specific
standards can impose additional costs and operational burdens on the company. Non-compliance or legal disputes may
result in fines, penalties, reputational damage, or even litigation, adversely affecting the company's financial condition and
ability to operate effectively.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company’s most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company’s owns trademarks, copyrights,
Internet domain names, and trade secrets. We believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our
intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is
important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is possible that competitors will be able to
design around our intellectual property, find prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some
other mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection without obtaining a sublicense,
it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability
to compete in the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed unenforceable, the Company will
almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a
significant potential revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we believe that a competitor is infringing on
one or more of our trademarks or copyrights, we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully
prosecute a multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of enforcing our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or
for some other reason. Choosing not to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into sublicenses,
and weakening our attempts to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in the Company could be significantly and
adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other highly qualified personnel in the
future, could harm our business

Our business depends on our ability to attract, retain, and develop highly skilled and qualified employees. As we grow, we
will need to continue to attract and hire additional employees in various areas, including sales, marketing, design,
development, operations, finance, legal, and human resources. However, we may face competition for qualified candidates,
and we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in recruiting or retaining suitable employees. Additionally, if we make
hiring mistakes or fail to develop and train our emplovees adequately, it could have a negative impact on our business,
financial condition, or operating results. We may also need to compete with other companies in our industry for highly
skilled and qualified employees. If we are unable to attract and retain the right talent, it may impact our ability to execute
our business plan successfully, which could adversely aftect the value of your investment. Furthermore, the economic
environment may affect our ability to hire qualified candidates, and we cannot predict whether we will be able to find the
right employvees when we need them. This would likely adversely impact the value of vour investment.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government regulation which can be subject to change at
any time

Our ability to sell our products is subject to various government regulations, including but not limited to, regulations
related to the manufacturing, labeling, distribution, and sale of our products. Changes in these regulations, or the
enactment of new regulations, could impact our ability to sell our products or increase our compliance costs. Furthermore,
the regulatory landscape is subject to regular change, and we may face challenges in adapting to such changes, which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition, or operating results. In addition to government regulations, we may also
be subject to other laws and regulations related to our products, including intellectual property laws, data privacy laws, and
consumer protection laws. Non-compliance with these laws and regulations could result in legal and financial liabilities,
reputational damage, and regulatory fines and penalties. It is also possible that changes in public perception or cultural
norms regarding our products may impact demand for our products, which could adversely affect our business and financial
performance, which may adversely affect your investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

Our business relies on a variety of third-party vendors and service providers, including but not limited to manufacturers,
shippers, accountants, lawyers, public relations firms, advertisers, retailers, and distributors. Our ability to maintain high-
quality operations and services depends on these third-party vendors and service providers, and any failure or delay in their
performance could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. We mav have
limited control over the actions of these third-party vendors and service providers, and they may be subject to their own



operational, financial, and reputational risks. We may also be subject to contractual or legal limitations in our ability to
terminate relationships with these vendors or service providers or seek legal recourse for their actions. Additionally, we may
face challenges in finding suitable replacements for these vendors and service providers, which could cause delays or
disruptions to our operations. The loss of key or other critical vendors and service providers could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition, and operating results, and as a result, your investment could be adversely impacted
by our reliance on these third-party vendors and service providers.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may face risks related to cybersecurity and data protection. We rely on technology
systems to operate our business and store and process sensitive data, including the personal information of our investors.
Any significant disruption or breach of our technology systems, or those of our third-party service providers, could result in
unauthorized access to our systems and data, and compromise the security and privacy of our investors. Moreover, we may
be subject to cyber-attacks or other malicious activities, such as hacking, phishing, or malware attacks, that could result in
theft, loss, or destruction of our data, disruption of our operations, or damage to our reputation. We may also face legal and
regulatory consequences, including fines, penalties, or litigation, in the event of a data breach or cyber-attack. Any
significant disruption or downtime of our platform, whether caused by cyber-attacks, system failures, or other factors, could
harm our reputation, reduce the attractiveness of our platform, and result in a loss of investors and issuer companies.
Moreover, disruptions in the services of our technology provider or other third-party service providers could adversely
impact our business operations and financial condition. This would likely adversely impact the value of your investment.

Economic and market conditions

The Company's business may be aftected by economic and market conditions, including changes in interest rates, inflation,
consumer demand, and competition, which could adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, and
operating results,

Force majeure events

The Company's operations may be affected by force majeure events, such as natural disasters, pandemics, acts of terrorism,
war, or other unforeseeable events, which could disrupt the Company's business and operations and adversely affect its
financial condition and operating results.

Adverse publicity
The Company’s business may be negatively impacted by adverse publicity, negative reviews, or social media campaigns that
could harm the Company's reputation, business, financial condition, and operating results.

We are subject to many federal, state and local laws with which compliance is both costly and complex

The alcohol industry is subject to extensive federal, state and local laws and regulations, including the recently enacted
comprehensive health care reform legislation, those relating to building and zoning requirements and those relating to the
preparation and sale of food. We are also subject to licensing and regulation by state and local authorities relating to health,
sanitation, safety and fire standards. We are subject to federal and state laws governing our relationships with employees
(including the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and applicable
requirements concerning the minimum wage, overtime, family leave, working conditions, safety standards, immigration
status, unemployment tax rates, workers' compensation rates and state and local payroll taxes) and federal and state laws
which prohibit discrimination. As significant numbers of our associates are paid at rates related to the applicable minimum
wage, further increases in the minimum wage or other changes in these laws could increase our labor costs. Our ability to
respond to minimum wage increases by increasing menu prices will depend on the responses of our competitors and
customers. There is also a potential for increased regulation of certain food establishments in the United States, where
compliance with a HACCP approach may now be required. HACCP refers to a management system in which food safety is
addressed through the analysis and control of potential hazards from production, procurement and handling, to
manufacturing, distribution and consumption of the finished product. Many states have required restaurants to develop and
implement HACCP Systems, and the United States government continues to expand the sectors of the food industry that
must adopt and implement HACCP programs. For example, the FSMA, signed into law in January 2011, granted the FDA
new authority regarding the safety of the entire food system, including through increased inspections and mandatory food
recalls. Although restaurants are specifically exempted from or not directly implicated by some of these new requirements,
we anticipate that the new requirements may impact our industry. Additionally, our suppliers may initiate or otherwise be
subject to food recalls that may impact the availability of certain products, result in adverse publicity or require us to take
actions that could be costly for us or otherwise impact our business. In March 2010, the United States federal government
enacted comprehensive health care reform legislation which, among other things, includes guaranteed coverage
requirements, eliminates pre-existing condition exclusions and annual and lifetime maximum limits, restricts the extent to
which policies can be rescinded and imposes new and significant taxes on health insurers and health care benefits. The
legislation imposes implementation effective dates that began in 2010 and extend through 2020, and many of the changes
require additional guidance from government agencies or federal regulations. To date, we have not experienced material
costs related to such legislation. However, due to the phased-in nature of the implementation and the lack of interpretive
guidance, it is difficult to determine at this time what impact the health care reform legislation will have on our financial
results. Possible adverse effects could include increased costs, exposure to expanded liability and requirements for us to
revise the ways in which we provide healthcare and other benefits to our employees. The impact of current laws and
regulations, the effect of future changes in laws or regulations that impose additional requirements and the consequences



of litigation relating to current or future laws and regulations, or our inability to respond effectively to significant
regulatory or public policy issues, could increase our compliance and other costs of doing business and, therefore, have an
adverse effect on our results of operations. Failure to comply with the laws and regulatory requirements of federal, state and
local authorities could result in, among other things, revocation of required licenses, administrative enforcement actions,
fines and civil and criminal liability. In addition, certain laws, including the ADA, could require us to expend significant
funds to make modifications to our shops if we failed to comply with applicable standards. Compliance with all of these laws
and regulations can be costly and can increase our exposure to litigation or governmental investigations or proceedings.

We are a Social Purpose Corporation and our Board of Directors will consider factors other than what is in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders in decision making, which may result in a diminution of the value of our securities.
As a Social Purpose Corporation we are a for profit corporation and have authority to act and maintain our business as any
other corporation, with the added feature that we are organized to carry out our business in a manner intended to promote
positive short-term or long-term effects of, or minimize adverse short- term or long-term effects of, the corporation’s
activities upon any or all of: (a) the corporation’s employees, suppliers, or customers; (b) the local, state, national, or world
community; or {c) the environment. The specific social purposes for which this corporation is organized (collectively, the
“Specific Social Purposes”) are to support education regarding craft and local liqueur processing, and development of best
practices in organic production and beverage processing, including but not limited to actions and economic support to: (a)
education about the importance of craft and local liqueur processing; (b) the advancement of low carbon footprint
packaging and corporate activities; and (c) economic and social assistance to organizations with similar goals or objectives.
If, in our decisions, actions are taken in accordance with the foregoing, such decisions may result in a decrease in our sales
or profits or the value of our securities.

We have agreed to provide indemnification of officers and directors.

Our Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and organizational materials provide that we may indemnify any director, officer,
agent and/or employee for liahilities as are specified by law. We have entered into and intend in the future to enter into
indemnification agreements with each of our officers and directors. Further, we may purchase and maintain insurance on
behalf of any of them whether or not we have the power to indemnify such person against the liability insured against. This
could result in substantial expenditures by us and prevent us from recovering from our officers, directors, agents and
emplovees for losses incurred by us as a result of their actions. State corporate statutes and organizational materials under
certain circumstances provide for indemnification of the Company’s officers, directors and controlling persons against
liabilities which they may incur in such capacities. A summary of the circumstances in which such indemnification is
provided is contained herein, but this description is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation and agreements entered into with our officers and directors. In general, any officer, director, employee or
agent may be indemnified against expenses, fines, settlements or judgments arising in connection with a legal proceeding
to which such person is a party, if that person’s actions were in good faith, were believed to be in the Company’s best
interest, and were not unlawful. Unless such person is successful upon the merits in such an action, indemnification may be
awarded only after a determination by independent decision of the Board of Directors, by legal counsel, or by a vote of the
shareholders, that the applicable standard of conduct was met by the person to be indemnified. The circumstances under
which indemnification is granted in connection with an action brought on behalf of the Company is generally the same as
those set forth above; however, with respect to such actions, indemnification is granted only with respect to expenses
actually incurred in connection with the defense or settlement of the action. In such actions, the person to be indemnified
must have acted in good faith and in a manner believed to have been in the Company’s best interest and have not been
adjudged liable for negligence or misconduct. Indemnification may also be granted pursuant to the terms of agreements
which may be entered in the future or pursuant to a vote of shareholders or directors. The statutory provision cited above
also grants the power to the Company to purchase and maintain insurance which protects its officers and directors against
any liabilities incurred in connection with their service in such a position, and such a policy may be obtained by the
Company.

Risks Related to Disgruntled Holders of Company Shares

Company shareholders who were repaid funds due on prior loans but have left repayment checks uncashed, have taken
actions that the Founder believes has, or may cause, future risks and/or damage to the Company. Such actions may have a
negative impact on the Company through incurrence of legal fees and other expenses, negative publicity from the
shareholder’s past and current conduct, harassment and defamation of the Founder and/or other Company employees and
partners, harassment and defamation of the brand both publicly and privately through channels including, but not limited
to, Company meetings, social media, press, and/or in-person dialogue, all of which could have a material adverse effect on
the Company, its operation and financial prospects.

Forward Looking Statements

Some of the statements in the materials provided to subscribers and purchasers are forward-looking. These statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our or our industry’s actual results, levels
of activity, performance, or achievements to be materially different from future results, levels of activity, performance, or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking
statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,”
“potential” or “continue” or the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only
predictions. Actual events or results may and likely will differ materially. In evaluating these statements, you should



specifically consider various factors, including the risks outlined under "Risk Factors.” Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of
activity, performance or achievements. Moreover, neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy
and completeness of such statements. We are under no duty to update any of the forward-looking statements after the date
of this prospectus to conform such statements to actual results.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the company’s holders of 20% or more of any
class of voting securities as of the date of this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Type of Perce
Stockholder Name Securities Security
Owned Owned |™"78¢
Commaon 36.16
Kurt Charron 2,165,677 Stock 79
Halliser CB2 LP (General Partner = Halliser UGP LLC (Managed by Board of Managers 2 776 101 Common
represented by Collin Bauer, Brant Scott, Shanil Shah, and James Cheeseman) e Stock 45.68
Halliser CBZ LP (General Partner = Halliser UGP LLC (Managed by Board of Managers 2 650,000 Preferred |[7T%
represented by Collin Bauer, Brant Scott, Shanil Shah, and James Cheeseman) e stock

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Preferred Stock, and SAFE . As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the
Company will be offering up to 235,294 of Common Stock,

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 50,000,000 with a total of 6,395,304 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share. Please see voting rights for securities sold in this offering below.
Material Rights

Voting Rights for Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEOQ"), or his or her successor,
as the Subscriber's true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive notices and
communications, (iil) execute any instrument or document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the
exercise of its authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the CEO
for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are
coupled with an interest. Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, s0 long as the Subscriber is an
individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity,
will survive the merger or reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However, the Proxy
will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act of 1933 cover the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a registration
statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock.

loinder to Shareholder Agreement
Execution of the Subscription Agreement serves as a Joinder Agreement whereby the Subscriber, as an “Investor,” agrees to

the terms of, and becomes a party to, the Company’s First Amended & Restated Shareholders Agreement dated March 28,
2024, referred to as the "Shareholder Agreement.” The following is a summary of key provisions applicable to investors:

Distribution Rights and Preferences: Investors are entitled to receive distributions as declared by the Board. The
Shareholders Agreement provides for the priority distribution of available cash, first to Senior Preferred Investors, followed
by Series A Shareholders, and then to Common Shareholders on a pro rata basis (Section 7.3).

Liguidation Rights and Preferences: Upon liguidation of the Company, Senior Preferred Investors have priority, receiving
their liquidation preference before any distributions are made to Series A Shareholders, who are entitled to receive an
amount equal to two times their invested capital. Any remaining assets are then distributed to Common Shareholders
(Section 7.4).

Dividend Rights: The Board may declare dividends from available cash after considering the Company’s financial health and
obligations. Dividends are paid in order of priority: first to Senior Preferred Investors, followed by Series A Preferred
Shareholders, and finally to Common Shareholders (Section 3.7).

Preemptive Rights: Shareholders holding 1% or more of the Company’s outstanding shares have the right of first refusal to
participate in future offerings of new securities, allowing them to maintain their ownership percentage (Section 3.2).



Right of First Refusal: If a shareholder wishes to sell their shares to a third party, the Company and existing shareholders
have the first right to purchase the shares under the same terms, thereby controlling share transfers and protecting
shareholder interests (Section 5.2).

Drag-Along/Tag-Along Rights: In the event of a proposed sale of the Company, the Drag-Along provision requires minority
shareholders to sell their shares on the same terms as the majority shareholders. The Tag-Along provision allows certain
minority shareholders to join the sale initiated by another shareholder, ensuring they receive the same terms and pricing
(Sections 6.1 and 6.3).

Stock Options and Warrants

There are currently 148,300 shares to be issued pursuant to stock options which are reserved but unissued at this time. The
total amount outstanding noted above includes these stock options.

The total number of shares listed as outstanding includes 258,167 shares reserved for 1ssuance on exercise of stock options
which are issued and outstanding. Such shares shall only be issued on due and full exercise of such options by the holders
thereof.

There are no outstanding warrants.
Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 20,000,000 with a total of 2,798,436 outstanding.
Voting Rights

There are no voting rights associated with Preferred Stock.
Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with Preferred Stock,

SAFE
The security will convert into Preferred equity and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $375,707.87

Interest Rate: 0.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Priced Preferred Equity Round

Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with SAFE .

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes by proxy to the CEO of the Company.
Even if you were to receive control of your voting rights, as a minority holder, you will have limited rights in regards to the
corporate actions of the Company, including additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of
the Company or its significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the corporate actions of the Company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor's stake in a company could be diluted due to the
Company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the Company issues more shares, the percentage of the Company
that you own will go down, even though the value of the Company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger
company. This increase in the number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public
offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, or angel investment), emplovees exercising stock options, or
by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the Company
decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and
control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution,
with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the Company offers dividends, and
most early-stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the Company).

Transferability of securities



For a vear, the securities can only be resold:
= |nan PO,
* To the company;
¢ Toan accredited investor; and

* Toa member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created
for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce
of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities
We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three vears:

» Name: Class A Preferred Shares
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $148,786.00
Number of Securities Sold:; 148,786
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: October 02, 2023
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

* Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $148,786.00
Number of Securities Sold: 148,786
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: October 02, 2023
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $224,532.00
Number of Securities Sold: 35,767
Use of proceeds: Working Capital, Inventory, and Marketing
Date: November 24, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

« Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.00
Number of Securities Sold: 687
Use of proceeds: StartEngine Fees related to the company's Reg CF offering .
Date: November 24, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,908,997.77
Number of Securities Sold: 2,736,101
Use of proceeds: Debt repayment and working Capital
Date: August 16, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(h)

& Name: Class A Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $2,650,000.00
Number of Securities Sold: 2,650,000
Use of proceeds: Working capital and growth
Date: August 16, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)



Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with
our financial statements and related notes appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the
timing of events may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors,
including those discussed in the section entitled "Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Results of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2023 compared to year ended December 31, 2022, Our financial statements and discussion factor
in our entity Charron Favreau 5.P.C. and our wholly owned subsidiary Charron Favreau LLC which has been in operation
since 2011.

Revenue

Revenue for fiscal vear 2023 was a record $1,688,716, up 19% compared to fiscal year 2022 revenue of $1,419,257. The
company increased the number of retail locations carrying its products, as well as, increased the velocity of its products in
the on-premise channel.

(Gross Margins

2023 gross profit was up 17% over 2022 gross profit. Increased scale and manufacturing efficiencies led to lower costs of
goods sold.

Expenses

The company spent 2022 testing marketing initiatives to take the Chareau brand from its status as an award-winning,
bartender favorite cocktail ingredient into a national consumer brand. In 2023, the company was able to complete its brand
refresh and successful relaunch of the brand. Through the learnings of 2022, the company was able to trim expenses by 28%
and increase net ordinary income by 45% in 2023, while expanding into new retail doors and gaining new consumer brand
awareness.

Historical results and cash flows:

Cash flows will improve significantly in the future, as the company was able to improve net income by $985,294 from 2022
to 2023, Net income is expected to continue to improve for 2024 and reach profitability by 2025.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand, existing lines of credit, shareholder loans,
etc...)

Cash in the bank as of 11/14/24 is $108,444.31

As emergency funding, the company is able to factor Accounts Receivables through Park Street Imports, if needed.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these funds critical to your company
operations? Or do you have other funds or capital resources available?)

The minimum funds from this raise will be used for working capital to continue operating at current levels through 2024
and grow in 2025. With recent months of cash flow-positive operations, the company projects profitability in 2025. We have
significantly reduced costs, increased margins, and will continue to in 2025. The opening of our new distillery and tasting
room will add a new revenue stream to offset out overheads, while the expansion is going to improve our margins from
reduction in COGS even further.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the total funds that your company has, how
much of that will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign?)

The minimum funds from this raise will be used for working capital, and additional funds raised will be used to promote
future growth.



How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What expenses is this estimate based on?

With the minimum funds raised the Company will be able to operate through 2025, if not longer. This is based on the
company reaching breakeven and profitability in 2025, The company’s current monthly burn rate is $30k.

How long will you be able to operate the company if vou raise your maximum funding goal?

The maximum funding goal will allow the company to open new revenue streams and increase profitability.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company? (Required capital contributions, lines of credit,
contemplated future capital raises, etc...)

The Company does reserve the right to seek capital for growth and future needs. The Company may also seek debt facilities
in the form of a line of credit, leases, or term loans to further strengthen and secure its financial standing or fund future
growth,.

Indebtedness

& Creditor: Shareholder Loans
Amount Owed: $395,295.26
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2025
On January 26, 2023, the Company issued a Promissory Note to three shareholders (Rouzbeh Kordestani, Ronak
Kordestani and William Graves) in the total amount of $393,295, with an interest rate of 3% per annum and no set
maturity. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding amount of these loans was $393,295,

s Creditor: U.S. Small Business Administration
Amount Owed: $514,367.11
Interest Rate: 3.75%
Maturity Date: April 09, 2050
The first SBA loan (500,000 from 2020) is secured by a continuing security interest in all tangible and intangible
personal property currently owned or subsequently acquired by the Borrower. This includes but is not limited to,
inventory, equipment, instruments (including promissory notes), chattel paper (both tangible and electronic),
documents, letter of credit rights, accounts (including healthcare insurance receivables and credit card receivables),
deposit accounts, commercial tort claims, and general intangibles (including payment intangibles and software). The
security interest also covers all accessions, attachments, accessories, parts, supplies, and replacements related to the
collateral, as well as any products, proceeds, and collections derived from it. Additionally, the collateral encompasses
all records and data associated with the described property.

e Creditor: U.S. Small Business Administration
Amount Owed: $270,234.09
Interest Rate: 3.75%

Maturity Date: May 31, 2052

The second SBA loan ($248,000 from 2022) is secured by a continuing security interest in all of the Company’s tangible
and intangible personal property, including but not limited to inventory, equipment, accounts receivable, general
intangibles, and deposit accounts, as defined under the Uniform Commercial Code. The collateral also includes any
proceeds, products, or collections of these assets, as well as all related records and data. No additional real property
has been collateralized under this loan.

e Creditor: Celtic Bank

Amount Owed: 512,463 88
Interest Rate: 82.6%

Related Party Transactions

# Name of Person: Kurt Charron
Relationship to Company: Officer
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Outstanding Loan with $76,478.35 due
Material Terms: Interest Rate: 1%



& Name of Person: Rouzbeh Kordestani, Ronak Kordestani and William Graves
Relationship to Company: Shareholders
MNature / amount of interest in the transaction: On January 26, 2023, the Company issued a Promissory Note to three
shareholders (Rouzbeh Kordestani, Ronak Kordestani and William Graves) in the total amount of $393,295, with an
interest rate of 3% per annum and no set maturity. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding amount of these loans
was $393,295,

Material Terms: No other material terms other than the above.,

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $16,308,025.20

Valuation Details:
This pre-money valuation was calculated internally by the Company without the use of any tormal third-party evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) all
preferred stock is not converted to common stock but included in the outstanding shares; (ii) all outstanding options,
warrants, and other securities with a right to acquire shares are exercised; and (iii) any shares reserved for issuance under a
stock plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities currently outstanding. The Company
currently has $375,707.87 in SAFEs outstanding, Please refer to the Company Securities section of the Offering
Memorandum for further details regarding current outstanding convertible securities which may affect your ownership in
the future.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,995.55 we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

» StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

® Start Engine Service Fees
94.5%
Fees for certain creative design, legal, marketing, technical, and administrative support services provided by
StartEngine, of which the final amount may vary.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $599,999.70, we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

= StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

* Working Capital
40.0%
Funds will be used for working capital.

¢ Equipment & Construction
40.0%

Funds will be used to expand manufacturing capabilities and open new revenue streams

* Inventory
13.3%
Funds will be used to purchase inventory to produce Chareau.

= StartEngine Service Fees
1.2%

Fees for certain creative design, legal, marketing, technical, and administrative support services provided by
StartEngine, of which the final amount may vary.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or directors.



Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation Crowdfunding.
Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website no later than April 30
(120 davs after Fiscal Year End). Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
http://chareau.us/ (https://chareau.us/pages/investors).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than three hundred {300)
holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including
any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.
Updates
Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/chareau

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Charron Favreau, 5.P.C.
Los Angeles, California

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Charron Favreau, 5.P.C. (the
"Company,”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022,
and the related consoclidated statements of operations, statements of stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows
for the year ending December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data
and making inquiries of company management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective
of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the consolidated financial statements as a whole. Accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements related to our reviews.

Accountant’'s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Going Concern

As discussed in Note 15, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be
necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern,

SeirApart Accountancy Corp.

September 23, 2024
Los Angeles, California




CHARRON Favreau, S.P.C.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(UNAUDITED)
As of December 31, 2023 2022
(USD S in Dallars)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Eguivalents 11,706 458,055
Accounts Receivable, net 132,137 161,398
Inventory 528,687 928,608
Due From Related Parties 76,478 75,717
Prepaids and Other Current Assets 135,608 124,300
Total Current Assets 884,616 1,748,579
Property and Equipment, net 895,261 128,581
Right-of-Use Asset 722,034 791,642
Security Deposit 27,144 27,144
Total Assets 1,729,056 2,695,946
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 120,045 128,701
Credit Cards 8,784 17,945
Current Portion of Loans and Notes 45,420 10,645
Related Party Loans 393,295 393,295
Forward Financing 42,219 -
Lease Liability, current portion 72,643 61,862
Other Current Liabilities 108,363 23,317
Total Current Liabilities 790,769 635,766
Loans and Promissory Notes, net of current portion 742,328 778,063
Lease Liability, net of current portion 716,395 789,038
Total Liabilities 2,249,492 2,202,867
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Commaon Stock 599 581
Preferred Stock 280 265
Additional Paid in Capital 6,116,738 5,813,866
Accumulated Deficit (6,638,054) (5,321,633)
Total Stockholders’ Equity (520,437) 493,079
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 1,729,056 5 2,695,946

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




CHARRON Favreau, S.P.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

For the Year Ended December 31,

(USD 5 in Dollars)
Net Revenue

Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses

General and Administrative

Selling and Marketing

Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Loss

Interest Expense
Other (Income)/Loss

Loss Before Provision for Income Taxes

Pravision/(Benefit) for Income Taxes

Net Loss

2023 2022
¢ 1,688,716 $ 1,419,257
798,137 656,384
890,579 762,873
1,704,188 1,998,254
332,171 844,697
2,036,359 2,842,951
(1,145,781) (2,080,078)
171,206 121,104
(566) 100,532
(1,316,420) (2,301,714)
$  (1,316,420) $ (2,301,714)

See gccompanying notes to financial statements.



CHARRON FAVREAU, S.P.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)

Comeman Steck Prafarred Steck Additional Paid In Accumulatad Tatal Stockheldars
[USD 5 in Dallars) Shares Amourt Shares Amaurt Capital Deeficit Equity
Balance —Diecember 31, 2021 L A0S SRR 5 L1:51 BOS,000 5 Bl & 3,558,701 5 (2572363) L3 BEESTY
lszuarde of Stock - 045,000 205 2,052,427 - 2,152,632
Share-Based Compensstian - - - B 2. 738 - 2. 738
Frior Year Adjustment |Mew Leasing Standard -05C 84.2) - (AT 556) (47 S55]
Mt Loss . . . {2.300,714) (7,301,714
Balance =December 31, 2022 5809568 5 581 1650000 5 165 & 5,813,866 i |5321,633) & 493,079
Issuarce of Stack 148, 435 1% 148,435 1% g aas . 1Hp 419
lssuarce of Commaon Steck, stock splions avercned 30=33 3 a 1
Share-Based Compensatian - - 4483 - 4,483
Mt Laus - - - {1, 316420 (1,316,420
Balance—December 31, 2023 5,928 837 -] 599 2,798 436 5 280 g b, 116,738 5 15..5!!,1]5-“ g {EI'D,HI]

See accomponying notes o fingnoie! stotemeants.



CHARRON Favreau, S.P.C.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022

(USD 5 in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Met Loss 5  (1,316,420) 5  (2,301,714)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Depreciation of Property 35,827 106,043
Share-Based Compensation 4 483 2,738
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable, net 29,761 231,211
Inventory 399,921 (415,388)
Prepaids and Other Current Assets (11,308) (66,421)
Due From Related Parties (761) (753)
Accounts Payable (8,656) 112,097
Credit Cards (9,161) 17,065
Other Current Liabilities 85,045 23,317
Operating Lease Liability 7,746 11,702
Security Deposit - (2,900}
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (783,523) (2,283,002)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Property and Equipment (2,507) (153,368)
MNet Cash Used in Investing Activities (2,507) (153,368)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from |ssuance of Stock 208,422 2,152,632
Related Party Loans - 393,295
Forward Financing 42,219 -
Borrowing/Repayment of Promissory Notes and Loans (960) 3,239
MNet Cash Provided by Financing Activities 339,681 2,549,166
Change in Cash & Cash Equivalents (446,349) 112,796
Cash & Cash Eguivalents —Beginning of The Year 458,055 345,259
Cash & Cash Equivalents—End of The Year 5 11,706 5 458,055
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid During the Year for Interest 5 171,206 5 121,104

See accompanying consolidated notes to financial statements



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022

1. NATURE OF OPERATION

Charron Favreau, S.P.C. was incorporated on February 11, 2019, in Washington. The company has a wholly
owned subsidiary, Charron Favreau LLC (organized on August 12, 2011, in California). The company was originally
formed in 2011 as Charron Favreau LLC. Licensing, IP, trademark, distribution contracts, leases, and many other
material contracts are still in the name of Charron Favreau LLC. In 2019, Charron Favreau, S.P.C. was formed to
further expand and develop the business as the parent company, and all Charron Favreau LLC members have
signed over their shares on a 1:1 basis to Charron Favreau, S.P.C. Charron Favreau LLC now operates as a wholly-
owned subsidiary. The consolidated financial statements of Charron Favreau, S.P.C. {which may be referred to as
the "Company”, "we", "us”, or "our”) are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America ("U.5. GAAP"). The Company's headquarters are located in Los Angeles, California.

Charron Favreau 5.P.C. is a beverage company that produces craft spirits in Camarillo, CA. The company operates
a distilled spirits plant and produces and markets spirits. The primary product is Chareau- an all-natural, plant-
based spirits made with California Aloe. Products are sold through 3™ party distributors to bars, restaurants, and
retail locations across the U5,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist in understanding the Company’s financial
statements. The accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ("GAAP" and "US GAAP"),

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
US GAAP and the Company has adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting.

Basis of Consolidation

The Company's consolidated financial statements include accounts of subsidiaries over which the Company
exercises control. All significant intercompany transactionsand accounts have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the consaolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks, cash on hand and all highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the Company's
cash & cash equivalents exceeded FDIC-insured limits by $0 and $174,894, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company is subject to concentrations of credit risks primarily from cash, cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, and notes receivable. At various times during the years, the Company may have bank deposits in
excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits. Management believes any credit risk is low due
to the owverall financial strength of the financial institutions. Accounts receivable consist of uncollateralized
receivables from customers/clients primarily located throughout the United States of America.



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are carried net of allowance for expected credit losses. The allowance for expected credit
losses is increased by provision charged to expense and reduced by accounts charged off, net of recoveries. The
allowance is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for potential account losses based on
management’s evaluation of the anticipated impact on the balance of current economic conditions, changes in
character and size of the balance, past and expected future loss experience and other pertinent factors.

In June 2016, the FASBE issued ASU No. 2016-13, "Financial Instruments - Credit Losses.”, This ASLU, and the
related ASUs issued subsequently by the FASB, introduce a new model for recognizing credit loss on financial
assets not accounted for at fair values through net income, including loans, debt securities, trade receivables, net
investment in leases and available-for-sale debt securities. The new ASU broadens the information that an entity
must consider in developing estimates of expected credit losses and requires an entity to estimate credit losses
over the life of an exposure based on historical information, current information and reasonable supportable
forecasts,

The Company adopted this ASU on January 1, 2023, using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption of

this ASU did not have a material impact on financial statements as the Company’s customers are direct consumers
and pay at the time of purchase. As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the Company determined an allowance for

expected credit loss of $0 and $0, respectively.

The Company engages in recourseable factoring of its accounts receivable. Under this arrangement, the factored
receivables remain on the balance sheet, net of any factoring fees, as the Company retains the risk of collection.
Factoring fees incurred are recorded as interest expense in the income statement, The factoring fees for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $59,571 and $£5,449, respectively.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventories include costs for ingredients and
finished goods, which are determined using an average method.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for additions, major renewals and betterments are
capitalized, and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged against income as incurred. When property

and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in statements of operations.

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis
over either the useful life of the improvement or the remainder of the related lease term, whichever is shorter,

Estimated useful lives for property and equipment are as follows:

Category Useful Life
Machinery and Equipment 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 years
Leasehold Improvements 15 years
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recorded in the period in which it is determined that the carrying amount is not recoverable.
The determination of recoverability is made based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows resulting
from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. The measurement of the impairment for long-lived assets
is based on the asset's estimated fair value. No such impairment was recorded for the year ended December 31,
2023, and 2022.



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
In determining when and how revenue is to be recognized from contracts with customers, the Company performs
the following five-step analysis laid under Accounting Standard Codification ("ASC") 606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers: (1) identification of contract with customers, (2) determination of performance obligations, (3)
measurement of the transaction price, (4) allocation of transaction price to the performance obligations, and (5)
recognition of revenue when or as the company satisfies each performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, which
typically occurs at the following times:

« Wholesale Transactions: Revenue is recognized at point-in-time when the goods are shipped or delivered
to the wholesale customer.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes the cost of raw materials and ingredients, packing materials, warehouse, freight and delivery
and other variable and fixed overheads.

Research and Development Costs

Costs incurred in research and development of the Company’s product are expensed as incurred.

Advertising & P tional Cost

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotional expenses for the years
ended December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, amounted to $332,171 and $844,697, which is included in
sales and marketing expenses,

Income Taxes

The Company is taxed as a C corporation for income tax purposes. The Company accounts for income taxes under
the liability method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax conseguences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for
the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is
provided on deferred tax assets if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will
not be realized. The Company records interest, net of any applicable related income tax benefit, on potential
income tax contingencies as a component of income tax expense, The Company records tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return based upon the amount that is more likely than not to be realized or paid,
including in connection with the resoclution of any related appeals or other legal processes. Accordingly, the
Company recognizes liabilities for certain unrecognized tax benefits based on the amounts that are more likely
than not to be settled with the relevant taxing authority. The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense.

Leases

The Company determines if an arrangement is a |ease at inception by determining whether the agreement
conveys the right to control the use of the identified asset for a period of time, whether the Company has the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the identified asset, and the right to
direct the use of the asset. Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based upon the present
value of the remaining future minimum lease payments over the lease term using the rate implicit in the lease or
the Company's incremental borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate is defined as the rate of interest the
Company would have to pay to borrow on a collateralized basis over a similar term in an amount equal to the
lease payments in a similar economic environment. The Company's lease terms include options to renew or
terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that it will exercise the option.

-8 -



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022

The |lease right-of-use assets are initially measured at the carrying amount of the lease liability and adjusted for
any prepaid or accrued lease payments, remaining balance of lease incentives received, unamortized initial direct
costs, or impairment charges relating to the right-of-use-asset. Certain leases contain escalation clauses, which
are factored into the right-of-use asset where appropriate. Lease expense for minimum l|ease payments is
recognized on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Variable lease expenses include payments related to the usage of the |leased asset (utilities, real estate taxes,
insurance, and wvariable common area maintenance) and are expensed as incurred. The Company's lease
agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to both employees and non-employees in accordance with
ASC 718, Stock-Based Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as
expense ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The Company uses
the Black-5Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities {such
as cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments).

The inputs used to measure fair value are based on a hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable
inputs used in valuation technigues. These levels, in order of highest to lowest priority, are described below:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by
market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company’s assumptions, consistent with reasonably available

assumptions made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

Subsequent Events

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but prior to the issuance
of the financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that
require additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 23, 2024, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.

3. DETAILS OF CERTAIN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Prepaid and other current assets consist of the following:

As of December 31, 2023 2022

Prepaid Expenses 23,308 12,000
Allowance Due From Landlord 112,300 112,300
Total Prepaids and Other Current Assets 5 135,608 5 124,300




CHARRON Favreau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DEcCemBER 31, 2022

Other current liabilities consist of the following:

As of December 31,

2023 2022
Accrued Expenses 60,719 -
PTO Accrued 26,283 23,317
Sublease Security Deposit 21,360 -
Total Other Current Liabilities 5 108,363 5 23,317
4. INVENTORY
Inventory consists of the following:
As of December 31, 2023 2022
Ingredient Inventory 407,807 668,012
Packaging Materials Inventory 55,103 107,020
Finished Goods 65,778 153,576
Total Inventory s 528,687 S 928,608
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following:
As of December 31, 2023 2022
Machinery and Equipment 5 417,377 S 414,870
Furniture and Fixtures 6,109 6,109
Leasehold Improvements 106,451 106,451
Property and Equipment, at cost 529,938 527,431
Accumulated Depreciation {434 ,677) (398,850)
Property and Equipment, net 5 95,261 S 128,581

Depreciation expenses for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were %35,827 and $106,043,

respectively.

6. LEASES

The Company has two operating leases for business premises and equipment, The Company's leases have terms
maturing through 2030. Monthly payments range from $594 to $11,321 and contain escalation clauses. Rent

expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The weighted average remaining lease term for operating leases as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were 5.42

years and 6.42 years, respectively.

The weighted average discount rate for operating leases as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 was 10%.

- 10 -



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DEcCemBER 31, 2022

Minimum future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as of December 31, 2023, are as follows:

As of December 31, 2023
2024 g 147,052
2025 151,250
2026 155,573
2027 158,839
Thereafter 486,772
Present Value Discount (310,447)
Total $ 1,099,486

7. FORWARD FINANCING

On November 16, 2023, the Company entered a revenue purchase agreement with Black Olive Capital LLC, with
the following terms - purchase price of $36,000, purchased percentage of 3%, purchase amount of $47,520, with
weekly remittance frequency, and remittance of $914. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding balance of the
forward financing is $42,219,

8. DEBT

The Company had outstanding term loans/ notes payables with varying maturities. Details of loans outstanding
are as follows:

As of December 2023 As of December 2022
Principal  Interest  Borrowing Maturity Current  Non-Current Total Current  Mon-Current Total
Debt Instrument Name  Amount Rate Period Date Partion Portion  Indebtedness| Portion Portion  Indebtedness
SBA Loam 5 500,000 3.75% 04/09/2020 04/09/2050(5 20504 5 493690 5 524,194 | 510645 5 524,194 5 534,839
SBA Loam 5 248,000 3.75% 0501272022 0571272052 14,916 248 638 253,554 - 253 B69 253,868
Total § 45420 $ 742328 5 787,748 510,645 S 778,063 S 788,708

The summary of the future maturities is as follows:

As of December 31, 2023

2024 S 45420
2025 45,420
2026 45,420
2027 45,420
2028 45,420
Thereafter 560,648
Total S 787,748

The first SBA loan ($500,000 from 2020) is secured by a continuing security interest in all tangible and intangible
persanal property currently owned or subsequently acquired by the Borrower. This includes but is not limited to,
inventory, eguipment, instruments (including promissory notes), chattel paper (both tangible and electronic),
documents, letter of credit rights, accounts (including healthcare insurance receivables and credit card
receivables), deposit accounts, commercial tort claims, and general intangibles (including payment intangibles
and software). The security interest also covers all accessions, attachments, accessories, parts, supplies, and
replacements related to the collateral, as well as any products, proceeds, and collections derived from it.
Additionally, the collateral encompasses all records and data associated with the described property.

-11 -



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022

The second SBA loan ($248,000 from 2022) is secured by a continuing security interest in all of the Company's
tangible and intangible personal property, including but not limited to inventory, equipment, accounts receivable,
general intangibles, and deposit accounts, as defined under the Uniform Commercial Code. The collateral also
includes any proceeds, products, or collections of these assets, as well as all related records and data. No
additional real property has been collateralized under this loan.

Related Party Loans

The Company borrowed money from three shareholders, listed below. The details of the loans from the owners
are as follows:

As of December 2023 fs of December 2022
Principal  imterest Borrowing — Matwrity Current Mon-Curre it Total Current Man-Current Taotal
Sharcholder Arnaount Rate Pericd Diate Portion Portion Indebtedness Portion Portion Indebtedness
Pramigsory note- Rouzbeh Kordestan 5 211240 3% 26/01/2023 OnDemand |5 211240 % - 5 2112401 5 211240 & - % 211.240
Pramissory note- Rouzbeh Kerdestan 2814 3% 26/01/2023 On Demand 1814 - 2.814 1814 - 2814
Promissory note-Bonak Kordestani 138 097 I 260172023 On Demand 138047 : 138047 130047 . 135097
Pramissory note-William Graves 40,144 1% 2601720231 On Demand 40,144 - 40,144 40,144 - 40,144
Total 5 393,295 5 - 5 393,295 5 393,295 5 - 5 393,295

Since no maturity date is set, the loan may be called at any time, so the loan is classified under current Liabilities.

9. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

During 2019, the Company authorized the Stock Option Plan (which may be referred to as the "Plan”). The
Company reserved 437,300 shares of its Common Stock pursuant to the Plan, which provides for the grant of
shares of stock options, stock appreciation rights, and stock awards (performance shares) to employees, non-
employee directors, and non-employee consultants. The option exercise price generally may not be less than the
underlying stock's fair market value at the date of the grant and generally has a term of ten years. The amounts
granted each calendar year to an employee or non-employee are limited depending on the type of award.

Stock Options

The Company granted stock options to its employees and executives at various times. The stock options were
valued using the Black-Scholes pricing model with a range of inputs indicated below:

Expected life (years) 10.00

Risk-free interest rate 3.95%
Expected volatility 75%
Annual dividend yield 0%

The risk-free interest rate assumption for options granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United
States government securities appropriate for the expected term of the Company's employee stock options.

The expected term of employee stock options is calculated using the simplified method, which takes into
consideration the contractual life and vesting terms of the options.

The Company determined the expected volatility assumption for options granted using the historical volatility of
comparable public company's Common Stock. The Company will continue to monitor peer companies and other
relevant factors used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants, until such time that the
Company's Common Stock has enough market history to use historical volatility.

The dividend yield assumption for options granted is based on the Company's history and expectation of dividend
payouts. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock, and the Company
does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future,

=12 -



CHARRON Favreau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DEcCemBER 31, 2022

Management estimated the fair value of Common Stock based on recent sales to third parties. Forfeitures are
recognized as incurred.

A summary of the Company’s stock options activity and related information is as follows:

Number of Weighted Average  Weighted Average
Awards Exercise Contract Term

Outstanding at December 31, 2021 25,000 5 0.03 -
Granted 167,000
Exercised -
Expired/Cancelled (75,000) -
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 117,000 & 0.03 9.65
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2022 40,625 S 0.03 9.65
Granted 150,000 -
Exercised (30,833) -
Expired/Cancelled (35,000) -
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 124,792 5 0.03 B.B5
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2023 32,499 5 0.03 8.65

The Company recognizes compensation expense for stock-based compensation awards using the straight-line
basis over the applicable service period of the award. The service period is generally the vesting period. During
the year ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expenses of
$4,483 and $2,738, respectively.

10. EQUITY AND CAPITALIZATION

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of £0.0001. As of
December 31, 2023, and 2022, 5,988,837 and 5,809,568 shares of commaon stock, respectively, have been issued
and were outstanding.

Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock with par value of $0.0001, of which
5,497,000 shares are designated as Series-A Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, 2,798,436

shares and 2,650,000 shares of preferred stock designated as Series-A Preferred Stock hawve been issued and
outstanding respectively.

Voting Rights:

¢« Common Stock: Holders of common stock generally have voting rights on corporate matters, such as
electing the board of directors and approving significant transactions like mergers. Typically, each
share of common stock grants one vote.

+ Preferred Stock: Preferred stockholders may have limited or no voting rights. In some cases, they gain
voting rights only if the company fails to pay dividends or if certain actions affecting their rights are
proposed.

- 13 -



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022

Dividend Rights:

¢ Common Stock: Common shareholders receive dividends if the board of directors declares them, but
these are subordinate to the dividends paid to preferred stockholders. There is no guarantee of
receiving dividends.

e Preferred Stock: Preferred stockholders usually have the right to receive fixed dividends before any
dividends are paid to common stockholders, These dividends may be cumulative (if unpaid in previous
periods, they accumulate).

Liquidity Rights (Rights in Liquidation):

= Common Stock: In the event of liquidation, common stockholders have the last claim on the company's
assets. They only receive any remaining assets after all debts, obligations, and preferred stockholders
have been paid.

e Preferred Stock: Preferred stockholders have a higher priority than common stockholders in liguidation.
They usually receive the par value or a specified liguidation preference before common shareholders
can claim any remaining assets.

11. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, consists of the
following:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 2022

Net Operating Loss 5 (392,820) 5 (636,983)
Valuation Allowance 392,820 636,983
Net Provision For Income Tax 5 - 5 -

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2023, and December
31, 2022 are as follows:

As of December 31, 2023 2022

Met Operating Loss 5 (1,238,158) S (845,338)
Valuation Allowance 1,238,158 845,338
Total Deferred Tax Asset S - s -

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income
will be generated to use the existing deferred tax assets. On the basis of this evaluation, the Company has
determined that it is more likely than not that the Company will not recognize the benefits of the federal and
state net deferred tax assets, and, as a result, full valuation allowance has been set against its net deferred tax
assets as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, The amount of the deferred tax asset to be realized
could be adjusted if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced or increased.
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023, the Company had a federal cumulative net operating loss ("NOL")
carryforwards of 44,149,322, Utilization of some of the federal and state NOL carryforwards to reduce future
income taxes will depend on the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration
of the carryforwards. The federal net operating loss carryforward is subject to an 80% limitation on taxable
income, does not expire, and will carry on indefinitely.

The Company recognizes the impact of a tax position in the financial statements if that position is more likely
than not to be sustained on a tax return upon examination by the relevant taxing authority based on the technical
merits of the position. As of December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, the Company had no unrecognized tax
benefits.

- 14 -



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions.

12. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

The Company's operations are subject to various local, state, and federal regulations. Failure to comply with these
requirements may result in fines, penalties, restrictions on operations, or loss of permits, which will have an
adverse impact on the Company’s operations and might result in an outflow of economic resources.

Litigation and Claims

From time to time, the Company may be involved in or exposed to litigation arising from operations in the normal
course of business. As of December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, there were no pending or threatened
lawsuits that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the results of the Company's operations.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On January 26, 2023, the Company issued a Promissory Note to three shareholders (Rouzbeh Kordestani, Ronak
Kordestani and William Graves) in the total amount of $393,295, with an interest rate of 3% per annum and no
set maturity. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding amount of these loans was $393,295.

On September 15, 2021, the company lent $£74,964 to Kurt Charron, with an interest rate of 1% per annum or
the lowest amount allowed by applicable law, and the maturity date is December 31, 2027. As of December 31,
2023, and December 31, 2022, the outstanding balance of this receivable is $76,478 and $ 75,717, respectively.

14, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 29, 2024, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Celtic Bank, with the following terms:
initial credit limit is $50,000, initial Applicable APR is 82,6%, Initial Applicable Amortization Period is 12 Monthly
Payments, and Initial Minimum Advance Amount is $1,000.

On May 1, 2024, the Company issued 72,000 stock options, with an exercise price of $0,22, vesting schedule of
1/48 monthly, 1-year cliff and expiration date of April 30, 2034,

On April 9, 2024, the Company entered a revenue purchase agreement with Black Olive Capital LLC, with the
following terms = purchase price of $65,000, purchased percentage of 6%, purchase amount of $85,800, with
weekly remittance frequency, and remittance of $1,650.

On July 25, 2024, the Company entered a revenue purchase agreement with Black Olive Capital LLC, with the
following terms - purchase price of $55,000, purchased percentage of 6%, purchase amount of $73,700, with
weekly remittance frequency, and remittance of $1,229.

The company raised funds in 2024 through the sale of SAFE agreements. The funds raised are $141,000, with a
pre-money valuation cap of $10,000,000 and a discount rate of 80%.

15. GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has a net operating
loss of 51,145,781, an operating cash outflow of 783,523 and liquid assets in cash of 511,706, which is less than a year's
worth of cash reserves as of December 31, 2023, These factors normally raise substantial doubt about the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

- 15 -



CHARRON FavReau, S.P.C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022

The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the next twelve months following the date the financial
statements were available to be issued is dependent upon its ability to produce revenues and/or obtain financing
sufficient to meet current and future obligations and deploy such to produce profitable operating results.

Management has evaluated these conditions and plans to generate revenues and raise capital as needed to satisfy its
capital needs. During the next twelve months, the Company intends to fund its operations through debt and/or equity
financing.

There are no assurances that management will be able to raise capital on terms acceptable to the Company. If it is
unable to obtain sufficient amounts of additional capital, it may be reqguired to reduce the scope of its planned
development, which could harm its business, financial condition, and operating results, The accompanying financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from these uncertainties.

- 16 -
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CLOSED ®
GET A PIECE OF CHAREAU

The Light, Refreshing Spirit !" Chareau

Chareau is a leading light, refreshing spirit made with fresh California Aloe. The award-
winning spirit has generated over $9.5M in revenue by bringing better-for-you into the bar
and onboarding major retailers like Whole Foods Market, Erewhon, and Total Wine & More.
Show less

- *Magically more refreshing”

- Bon Appetit

This Reg CF offering is made available through StartEngine
Primary, LLZ, This investment is speculative, illiquid, and

invelves a high degree of risk, including the possible loss of your

entire investment,

OVERVIEW ABOUT TERMS PRESS & UPDATES REWARDS DISCUSSION »
PREVIOUSLY CROWDFUNDED @
$735,697
MIN INVEST @ VALUATION
REASONS TO INVEST 499 ] c1531

Chareau has grown 250% between 2020 - 2023, raised over

2 $6.25mm in strategic investment, and is now available in
3,000+ locations, including 100+ new Whole Foods Market
stores.



Received a score of 96 from Wine Enthusiast Magazine, a
Double Gold Medal at the San Francisco World Spirits
Competition, and featured in the New York Times, USA Today,
and Bon Appétit.

The global liqueur market is $129B, with U.S. premium
. liqueurs up 51% in 3 years. Chareau has already achieved
9 $9.5M+ in gross sales* by providing a refreshing taste, fewer
calories, less sugar, and a low ABV.

*Chareau has achieved over $9.5M in gross spirit sales since launching in 2013,

Kurt Charron « Founder, CEO, Director

Kurt, an 18+ year beverage industry leader, founded Chareau in his kitchen and grew it
into an award-winning national brand. He developed the World's Highest Rated
Liqueur (96 by Wine Enthusiast), secured RNDC distribution, and gained press from
Bon Appetit, Forbes, and NY Times. A USC graduate, he also studied distillation at top
programs, including in Cognac, France.

Read Less

Helen Diaz = Co-Founder, VP of Sales & Advocacy

Helen is an award-winning bartender and beverage hospitality veteran with 20+ years
of experience. She started at the craft cocktail pioneers Bourbon & Branch, developed
beverage programs from SF to Tokyo with her consulting firm Fifty Fifty Cocktail Co., is
a judge at the SF World Spirits Competition, and was named Miss Speed Rack CA as
the fastest bartender in the state and the first Latina to win the competition.

Read Less

Scott Greenburg « Assistant Secretary & Director

Scott is a lawyer and advisor to growth companies, with deep experience in venture
capital, structuring, investments, M&A, IPO and follow on offerings, and corporate
governance. He is currently the Founder and Attorney at FarPoint Venture Law. Prior to




\{ *  FarPoint, Scott was a Partner at K&L Gates, and his experience as Outside General
- = Counsel includes Starbucks, Guayaki, MatchaBar, and Sambazon to name a few.
Read Less

Collin Bauer « Director

Collin Bauer is the Director of Strategy and M&A for Gallo, the world's largest family-
owned wine and spirits company. Prior to Gallo, Collin worked in strategy, modeling,
and advisory at First Annapolis Consulting. He also holds an MBA from the University of
Virginia Darden School of Business.

Read Less

Taylor Foxman = Advisor

Taylor is the Founder of The Industry Collective and has spent the past 11 years of her
professional career serving various Communications and Public Relations based roles
for 70 global wine, beer and spirit brands such as Edrington Americas, Pernod Ricard,
Patron Spirits Co., and Gruppo Campari. Taylor was also recently awarded 40 Under 40
for the beverage industry and Brand Innovator of the Year’s 40 Under 40.

Read Less

Robert Loitman = Controller (Independent Contractor)

Robert Loitman is an experienced financial controller and consultant specializing in
accounting, financial operations, and business strategy for startups and growing
companies. Currently serving as an independent contractor for Chareau, he manages
financial reporting, budgeting, and compliance. In addition to his role at Chareau,
Robert runs his own financial consulting business, where he helps clients streamline
their financial processes, implement accounting systems, and improve overall financial
health. With a background in both accounting and entrepreneurship, he offers practical
insights and tailored solutions to support business growth.

Read Less

|. Show Less

THE PITCH
Chareau: Bringing "Better-For-You" Into the Bar



Meet Chareau, a light, refreshing, and delicious plant-based spirit crafted with fresh California Aloe. The
low-calorie, low-ABV spirit brings “better-for-you” into the bar, letting consumers enjoy more of life’s
meaningful moments while having fun.

TESTIMONIAL

*The above testimonials may not be representative of the opinions or experiences of other Chareau customers and are not

a guarantee of future performance or success.

Chareau is an honest spirit, made from real ingredients sourced from local California farms. There are no
artificial colors, flavors, or additives, and the award-winning recipe has been named the Highest Rated
Liqueur and Top 100 Spirit in the world with a score of 96 by Wine Enthusiast Magazine. Not only
delicious, but the beautiful packaging was Recognized in Beverage Industry Magazine's December 2023
issue, which highlighted the top beverage packages of the year. Chareau is now available at over 3000
locations across the country, including major retailers like Whole Foods Market, Erewhon, Total Wine &
More, and MGM Resorts.

The Opportunity



Lose the Calories, Not the Taste

chareau

750 ML | 25% ALC/VOL

.E'
:
1 |
:

Try Chareau in an
ALOE MARGARITA

= 1 part Chareau

1 part Tequila
1 part Fresh Lime Juice
o 1/4 part Agave Nectar

chareau

*1/2 the calories of a

classic margarita

N

The alcohol industry is saturated with products containing high calories, artificial colors, flavors,
sweeteners, and hidden processes, while consumers are seeking a more mindful approach to health and
wellness. Chareau is a low-calorie, low-ABV alternative that can be enjoyed in a variety of cocktails or
sipped simply on the rocks with sparkling water. Our signature cocktail, the Aloe Margarita, has become
one of the “new skinny margaritas” all across the country.

Chareau's cocktail strategy is aligned with current trends, as the Margarita remains the top cocktail in the
U.S., accounting for 1 in every 6.2 cocktails ordered at bars. A Margarita made with Chareau offers a
lighter, more refreshing experience with half the calories of a traditional Margarita. Consumers are
enjoying the Aloe Margarita, whether ordering it at bars or making it in pitchers at home for friends and
family. In just three months, over 100,000 Aloe Margaritas were sold in California and Colorado alone.



*The above testimonial may not be representative of the opinions or experiences of other Chareau carriers and is not a
guarantee of future performance or success,

We pride ourselves on the positive response and accolades Chareau has been getting since it first hit
shelves, and as a purpose-driven brand, we are committed to sustainably and transparently continuing to
create the best drinks with locally sourced ingredients. We believe Chareau is a true gift from the hands
and hearts of California’s farmers and artisans.

THE MARKET & OUR TRACTION

Chareau's Rise in the $129B Liqueur Market



THE MARKET

3 US LIQUEUR MARKET

51 0/ HIGH-END PREMIUM
Y LIQUEUR 3-YEAR GROWTH

$1 7O GLOBAL LIQUEUR MARKET

5 1 0/ SPIRIT INDUSTRY’S ANNUAL
o Y REVENUE GROWTH

Source f Source [/ Source f Source

The U.S. liqueur market is a $3B market with high-end premium options growing 51% in the last 3

years.’ We believe Chareau is positioned well to both attract new consumers to the category and take
market share from the competition by providing a delicious, low-calorie alternative to traditional



ligueurs. Our competitors are name-brand liqueurs that can have more than double the calories and 3x
the sugar. This opportunity extends greatly to the global market, where liqueurs have a market value of

$129B and there is strong consumer demand for better-for-you »::ﬁ[::tti{::ns."E



TRACTION

AVAILABLE IN

40+

STATES

SOLD IN OVER

100

WHOLE FOODS




Chareau meets consumer demand for options that match their healthier lifestyle and mindfulness
toward sustainability. We've secured $6.25 million in funding, generated over $9.5 million in lifetime
revenue, and achieved 250% growth over the past three years. In 2024, Chareau broke into the Top 10
Liqueurs by shelf presence and cocktail menu placements as recognized by an Overproof study of
cocktails at the best bars, hotels, and restaurants across the country. With our recent growth, strategic
partnerships, and expansion plans, we believe Chareau is well-positioned to pursue further growth
opportunities in the spirits industry.

WHY INVEST
Join the Movement

Chareau is not only expanding in bars, restaurants, and retailers across the U.S., but we are excited to
announce the opening of our new distillery in Santa Barbara, CA. From the beginning, Chareau has
supported local farmers and produced each bottle in-house in Southern California. We are increasing
production capacity and moving into a new facility in downtown Santa Barbara, closer to our farms and
highly accessible for consumer tours and tastings. This new facility is intended to support our production
capacity and provide additional opportunities for revenue and brand awareness in our home market. The
region has a booming tourism traffic of over 7.2 million visitors annually, of which 15.1% will participate
in an alcohol tasting, providing a new revenue stream and increasing brand awareness in our home
market.



Experience

the Free Spirit
of California

chareau

Now is the time to join us as we bring low-calorie, delicious cocktails to more bars, restaurants, and
retailers near you. Invest in Chareau today!

ABOUT

HEADOQUARTERS WEBSITE
4682 Calle Bolero Unit B View Site @
Camarillo, CA 93012

Chareau is a leading light, refreshing spirit made with fresh California Aloe. The award-winning
spirit has generated over $9.5M in revenue by bringing better-for-you into the bar and
onboarding major retailers like Whole Foods Market, Erewhon, and Total Wine & Mare,

TERMS

Chareau



Overview

PRICE PER SHARE
$2.55

DEADLINE @
Feb. 20, 2025 at 7:59 AM UTC

Breakdown
MIN INVESTMENT ®
$499.80

MAX INVESTMENT ©
$599,999.70

MIN NUMBER OF SHARES OFFERED

3,921

MAX NUMBER OF SHARES OFFERED

235,294

VALUATION
$16.31M

FUNDING GOAL ©
$10K - $600K

OFFERING TYPE
Equity

SHARES OFFERED
Common Stock

Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject fo adjustment for bonus shares

SEC Recent Filing

Offering Circular

Offering Memorandum

Financials



Most Recent

Prior Fiscal

Fiscal Year-End Year-End

Total Assets $1,729,056 $2,695,946

Cash &Cash Equivalents e E.'-JIIIEE,DEE

;c.c.ﬂ;r;t;F%%%i.v;b.lé ......... $132j13.? .................... $1ELB?B ...............
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Long-Term Debt $1,458,723 . .$;i.L,.56'}',101

Revenue & Sales $1,688,716 $1,419,257

Costs of Goods Sold $798,137 $656,384

- Pald . S H' ......

.N.E.t. Inmme ................. _$1?316jdzu ................. _$2j301jl?1d ...............
| Hlsks ........................................................... A

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless
you can afford to lose your entire investment. In making an investment decision, investors must
rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and
risks involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document. The U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission
does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it
pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature. These securities
are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from
registration.

*Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares, See Bonus info below.



Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEQ"), or his or her successaor, as the
Subscriber's true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to, consistent with this
instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any
instrument or document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its authority under this instrument, and
{iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and power
granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest. Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy
and power, so long as the Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the Subscriber and, so long
as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities.
However, the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective
registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 cover the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a registration
statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock.

Joinder to Shareholder Agreement
Shareholder Agreements. Execution of this Subscription serves as a Joinder Agreement whereby the Subscriber, as an "Investor”
thereunder, agrees to the terms of, and becomes a party to, the Company's First Amended & Restated Shareholders Agreement dated

March 28, 2024, and referred to as "Shareholder Agreement”. Please refer to a summarization of these rights in the Company
Securities section of the Offering Circular.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses*
Loyalty Bonus
As you are a Previous Investor in Chareau, you are eligible for additional 20% bonus shares.
Time-Based Perks
Early Bird 1: Invest $1,000+ within the first 72 hours and receive 10% bonus shares
Early Bird 2: Invest $5,000+ within the first week and receive 15% bonus shares
Early Bird 3: Invest $10,000+ within the first two weeks and receive 20% bonus shares
Early Bird 4: Invest $25,000+ within the first two weeks and receive 25% bonus shares
Amount-Based Perks

Bronze: Invest $1,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store and future tasting room for
1 year

Silver: Invest $5,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store and future tasting room for 1
year + 5% bonus shares

Gold: Invest $10,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store and future tasting room for
1 year + 10% bonus shares

Double Gold: Invest $25,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store and future tasting
room for 1 year + 15% bonus shares

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in the same offering that meets the minimum perk
requirement. Bonus shares from perks will not be granted if an investor submits multiple investments that, when combined, meet the
perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

Crowdfunding investments made through a self-directed IRA cannot receive non-bonus share perks due to tax laws. The Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) prohibits self-dealing transactions in which the investor receives an immediate, personal financial gain on
investments owned by their retirement account. As a result, an investor must refuse those non-bonus share perks because they would be
receiving a benefit from their IRA account.

The 10% StartEngine Venture Club Bonus

Charron Favreau 5.P.C. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for
the StartEngine Venture Club.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For example, if
you buy 100 shares of Charron Favreau S.P.C. common stock at $2.55 / share, you will receive 110 shares of commaon stock, meaning



you'll own 110 shares for $255. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to
the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor’s eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority if they are on
a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest should room in
the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses based on the amount invested and the time of
offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors will also receive the Venture Club bonus, and the Loyalty Bonus in addition to the
aforementioned bonus.

Irregular Use of Proceeds
We will not incur any irregular use of proceeds.
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View Article

BevNET

BEVNET Chareal:l Celebrates 10 Year Anniversary with Launch of New
Packaging

View Article
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Kurt Charron Of Chareau On 5 Things You Need To Create a
Successful Food or Beverage Brand
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The Plant-Based Mixer We're Adding to All Our Summer Cocktails
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02.19.25

Last Call! Only hours left to invest in
Chareau!



Today is your last chance to invest in Chareau's current offering! The round will be open until 11:59pm PST
and there's only hours left to join our growing community.

* Invest $1,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store
and future tasting room for 1 year

* Invest $5,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store
and future tasting room for 1 year + 5% bonus shares

+ Invest $10,000+ and receive 1 bottle of Chareau + 20% off purchases from the Chareau online store
and future tasting room for 1 year + 10% bonus shares

Grow your investment portfolio with an award-winning light, refreshing spirit that has generated over
$9.5mm in revenue and grew 270% in January 2025 over 2024,

Invest Today!

This Reg CF offering is made mwailoble through StertEngine Primary, LLC, This investmend (5 specaiadves, iiliquid, and invatves o high degree of risk, inclrding the possible loss of your enfire
investment, Post performance o rewards ere ned indicadive of fuhure resaits or berefits. Tn eddition, es descrbed in the Offering Circalar, the Company retaing de night to continue the affering

Beyond the Terminglion Dale, in its saie gdiscrehion.

02.16.25

Only 3 Days Left to Invest!

Chareau is leading the future of a growing $129B global market, and there are only 3 days left to participate
in the future success of the company. Become an Investor Today!

Highlights
e 270% Growth in January 2025 over January 2024
« National distribution at Whole Foods Market, Total Wine & More, and over 3000 bars & restaurants
e Award-winning taste with a score of 96 from Wine Enthusiast Magazine
* Led by an Experienced Team from Campari, Casamigos, Teremana, Gallo, and Mr. Black Cold Brew

« Beautiful New Distillery and Tasting Room opening in Santa Barbara, CA
e Over $6mm raised

This Reg CF offening is made mwailable Hirpugh StartEngine Primany LLC, This investment i5 specaiaive, liquid, and invalees @ high degree of risk, including the passible loss af your entire
investment, Post perfermence or rewards are net indicative af future results or benefits. In eddition, @5 descried in the Offering Circularn, the Company retains the right te continue the affering

beymnd the Termingliaon Date. in ifs saile discrahion

02.14.25



Closing Soon! Only 5 Days Left

.
“Magically more refreshing”
Bon Appetit
e
.;.‘,'7} “Qur new cocktail secret weapon”
-‘:;' Food & Wine
chareau §
. 06 2x "

= . 1 b

s =

Beverage industry Magarine

4 % “Bast Beveragpe Package™ of 7073

There's only 5 days left to invest in one of the leading light spirits in the U.S. Over the 4 week period ending
1/25/25 the two leading spirit categories by volume were cordials (liqueurs) and tequila, up 8.1% and
11.4% respectively (Nielsen). The two main ingredients in our signature Aloe Margarita, tequila and

Chareau, are leading growth across the U.S., and Chareau revenue was up 270% in January 2024 over
2025.

Don't miss out on the opportunity to become a part of the journey. Invest Today!

This Reg CF offering is made meailable through SteriEngine Primarny, LLE, This investment is specuiadive, 1liguéd, and invalves o high degree of risk, inclinding the possibie lpss af pour entire
investment. Post performence or rewards ere net indicmhive of future resalls or berefits. Financia! claims are anaedited and hased on interna! financial reports, Mielsen datr exciudes the AT

CRIEg),

02.07.25

Our New Distillery is Coming to Santa
Barbara!



We're so excited to share a short video of our new distillery in Santa Barbara! This is just a sneak peak
before construction. We plan to be open by the end of Spring, and would love to have you come join us for a
private tour!

Become an investor today to have early access and share in the future success of Chareau!

This Reg CF offering is made meailable through SterfEngine Primarny, LLE, This investment is specuiative, iliguéd, and invalees o high degres of risk, inclinding the possibie loss af your entire

investment. Past performence or rewards ere net indicadive of future resulls or benefits

02.04.25

Record +270% Growth in January 2025!



RECORD BREAKING REVENUE
JANUARY REVENUE -

$180,000
$160,000
$140,000

S120,000

$100.000

l FELL S
Growth

Jan-14 Bin15

chareau

January 2025 was a record-breaking month for Chareau, with revenue up 270% over January 2024. An
increase of $115,906 in revenue over the same period last year. We've hit the ground running this year and
would love to have you join us!

Invest Today!

This Reg CF offening 5 made ovailoble hrough StertEngine Primary, LLC. This invesiment 15 specaiadive, iitigud, and invaives o igh degree of risk, inclnding the gassibie loss of paur enfire

invastmant. Past performance o revards wre not indicative of fulure resalts or banafits, Flnancial elaims are unawdited and based on infernal flnancial rapots.

01.29.25

Chareau Cocktails Coming to the Las
Vegas Strip!

Just in time for the upcoming pool season, Chareau has secured featured cocktails at some of the largest
and most popular Las Vegas resorts! You will find our Cucumber Cooler at the Bellagio, Aria, Vdara, MGM
Grand, Mandalay Bay, NoMad, and more MGM Resorts. Our Skinny Margarita will be featured at the
Flarmmingo, Ling, and Harrahs! We're still in talks with several more large resorts to bring better-for-you
cocktails to their guests this year!

Now is a great time to join us on our journey. Become an investor today!



LAS VEGAS UPDATE!

LOW CALORIE CHAREAU COCKTAILS

FEATURED AT YOUR FAVORITE LAS VEGAS POOLS THIS SPRING!
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01.22.25

Chareau Adds Key Executive Experience
to the Team

We're excited to announce the addition of Matt Diehm, JD Robertson, and the team of Wildfire
Beverage to help grow Chareau in bars and restaurants around the country. Matt Diehm is a former VP
at Mast Jagermeister who helped launch and grow Teremana Tequila = the fastest brand in US history to
ship 1 million 9L cases. JD Robertson's experience includes Casamigos, Monkey 47, and Mr. Black Cold
Brew - all 3 brands have been acquired.

Along with their executive insight, this partnership with Chareau will increase the number of account
managers in the field opening new accounts, educating the trade, and increasing sales volume,

Now is the time to join us as an investor as we continue on our path to bring Better-For-You into the bar,
grow market share, and lead the future of the category.
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WILDFIRE

Beverage Company

01.08.25

National Expansion at Whole Foods
Market



We're excited to announce our most recent expansion - Chareau is now available nationwide at Whole
Foods Market! Chareau first launched in Whole Foods in July 2024, and our performance has led to Shelf
Required placement at all locations with a license to sell spirits starting January 2, 2025, You can find a map
of locations near you on our website - Find a Bottle.

Join Us and Invest Today!

This Reg CF offening is made swailable tfroagh SteriEngine Primarny, LLC. This investment (s specaladiee, iiliquid, ang invalves o high degres of risk, including the possible loss of pour entire
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12.12.24

The New Skinny Spa Margarita at Moxies
Restaurants

You can now find Chareau at all Moxies locations across the U.S. in the new Skinny Spa Margarita! We're
very excited to continue bringing better, lower calorie margaritas to more bars and restaurants near you!



SKINNY SPA MARGARITA
lglo blonco tequila, chareou aloe liqueur, ime juice,
organic agave, cucumber 1o

PASSION FRUIT MEZCALITA
casomigos mezcal, chinola passion fruit iqueur, lime juice,
liber & co. almond orgeat 1/

PIMEAPPLE BASIL MARGARITA
flecha azul blanco tequila, cointreau, lime juice,
pineapple, fresh basil 15

Try a delicious Skinny Spa Margarita at Moxies!

Digcliimer: A margarita made with Chareau insdead of the treditional riple sec @ lower in calories and sugar. Chareau has ondy 50 calones and 2 grams of sugar per 1 o sérving. Tndividueal

resulis and avaitaldidity af Mosies ealions fmay werg

12.05.24

Our Campaign is now Live!!!

OUR INVESTMENT
CAMPAIGN IS NOW LIVEI

INVEST IN CHAREAU TODAY!
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We're excited to announce that our Investment Campaign on StartEngine is now LIVE!! Thank you to the
amazing investors who have already come on board and taken advantage of the Early Bird Bonuses.
Because of you we quickly surpassed our initial funding goal and now targeting $600k!

We're inviting all of you to learn more about this thrilling opportunity and consider joining our community!
Invest Today!

This Reg CF affering i made availoble ffroagh SteriEagine Primany, LLC. This invesimend is specaladive, iliguid, and invaives o high degree of risk, including the passibie loss of pour enfire
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REWARDS

Multiple investments in an offering cannot be combined to qualify for a larger campaign reward.

10% Stack Venture Club & Rewards!

Members get an extra 10% shares in addition to rewards below!

et $1,000 $5,000

Venture Club

Venture Club Members earn 10% Bronze Silver
bonus shares on top of this and all Invest $1,000+ and receive 1 Invest $5,000+ and receive 1
eligible investments for an entire bottle of Chareau + 20% off bottle of Chareau + 20% off
year. Not a member? Sign up at purchases from the Chareau purchases from the Chareau
checkout ($275/year). online store and future tasting online store and future tasting

room for 1 year room for 1 year + 5% bonus

shares
Select Select

$10,000 $25,000

Gold Double Gold

Invest $10,000+ and receive 1 Invest $25,000+ and receive 1
bottle of Chareau + 20% off bottle of Chareau + 20% off
purchases from the Chareau purchases from the Chareau
online store and future tasting online store and future tasting
room for 1 year + 10% bonus room for 1 year + 15% bonus

shares chares



Select

Select

JOIN THE DISCUSSION

Adam Field

3 months ago

That's awesome that you're opening a tasting room in
downtown SB! I've been part of your journey since the
very first crowdfund - still one of my favorite liqueurs,
and one I've been trying to get a couple bars in Long
Beach to stock for years (separate from a couple others
bars in Long Beach that *have* carried it for years.) I've
been trying to put less in illiquid investments recently,
but I couldn't resist joining again, with the stacked
previous investor + early bird perks.

Obviously I am curious if you have any ideas yet what
the most likely exit event would look like for us as
investors? (Fine if you don't - most important is
obviously getting Chareau on shelves everywhere!)

Beyond that, I'm also curious if you have any plans to
expand beyond the single product, especially now that
there will be a tasting room to advertise/sell from? I



still have a tiny bit of the Icarus brandy - I know it was a

one-off, but it is/was very good!
Show less
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Kurt Charron
Chareau » 3 months ago

Hi Adam! Thank you for always supporting!!

To answer your question, there are two most likely exit
scenarios. The first is an acquisition by a larger supplier.
We have already been in talks with potential acquirers
and have been given case volume targets for where they
would like the brand to be for an acquisition.

The second is for the brand to allow shareholders to sell
shares on a secondary market. StartEngine offers a
secondary marketplace, and it is something we are
exploring for investors who want to explore an exit
before an acquisition.

And yes! We will be offering additional products from the
Santa Barbara tasting room. The first would most likely
be brandy, as we have some amazing brandy aging in
barrels and almost ready to bottle.

Show less

to ~

HOW INVESTING WORKS

Cancel anytime before 48 hours before a rolling close or the offering end date.
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SIGN SUBMIT FUNDS IN FUNDS FUNDS
UuprP ORDER TRANSIT RECEIVED INVESTED

We want you to succeed and get the most out of your money by offering rewards and
memberships!

Your info is your info. We take pride in keeping it that way!

Invest in over 200 start-ups and collectibles!

FAQS

How much can I invest? ~

With Regulation A+, a non-accredited investor can only invest a maximum of 10% of their annual
income or 10% of their net worth per year, whichever is greater. There are no restrictions for
accredited investors.

With Regulation Crowdfunding, non-accredited investors with an annual income or net worth less
than $124,000 are limited to invest a maximum of 5% of the greater of those two amounts. For
those with an annual income and net worth greater than $124,000, they are limited to investing
10% of the greater of the two amounts.

When will I receive my shares? ~

At the close of an offering, all investors whose funds have “cleared” by this time will be included
in the disbursement. At this time, each investor will receive an email from StartEngine with their
Countersigned Subscription Agreement, which will serve as their proof of purchase moving
forward.



Please keep in mind that a company can conduct a series of “closes” or withdrawals of funds
throughout the duration of the campaign. If you are included in that withdrawal period, you will
be emailed your countersigned subscription agreement and proof of purchase immediately
following that withdrawal.

What will the return on my investment be? ~

StartEngine assists companies in raising capital, and once the offering is closed, we are no longer
involved with whether the company chooses to list shares on a secondary market or what occurs
thereafter. Therefore, StartEngine has no control or insight into your investment after the close of
the live offering. In addition, we are not permitted to provide financial advice. You may want to
contact a financial professional to discuss possible investment outcomes.

Can I cancel my investment? ~

For Regulation Crowdfunding, investors are able to cancel their investment at any point
throughout the campaign up until 48 hours before the closing of the offering. Note: If the
company does a rolling close, they will post an update to their current investors, giving them the
opportunity to cancel during this timeframe. If you do not cancel within this 5-day timeframe,
your funds will be invested in the company, and you will no longer be able to cancel the
investment. If your funds show as ‘Invested’ on your account dashboard, your investment can no
longer be canceled.

For Regulation A+, StartEngine allows for a four-hour cancellation period. Once the four-hour
window has passed, it is up to each company to set their own cancellation policy. You may find
the company’s cancellation policy in the company’s offering circular.,

Once your investment is canceled, there is a 10-day clearing period (from the date your
investment was submitted). After your funds have cleared the bank, you will receive your refund
within 10 business days.

Refunds that are made through ACH payments can take up to 10 business days to clear.
Unfortunately, we are at the mercy of the bank, but we will do everything we can to get you your
refund as soon as possible. However, every investment needs to go through the clearing process
in order to be sent back to the account associated with the investment.

What is the difference between Regulation Crowdfunding and Regulation A+? ”~

Both Title III (Regulation Crowdfunding) and Title IV (Reg A+) help entrepreneurs crowdfund
capital investments from unaccredited and accredited investors. The differences between these
regulations are related to the investor limitations, the differing amounts of money companies are



permitted to raise, and differing disclosure and filing requirements. To learn more about
Regulation Crowdfunding, click here, and for Regulation A+, click here,

More FAQs

Get To Know Us

Our Team

Careers

Let's Work Together

Raise Capital

Need Help

Contact Us

Refer a Founder, earn $10k Help Center

Success Stories
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Important Message
IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. INVESTMENTS ON
STARTENGINE ARE SPECULATIVE, ILLIQUID, AND INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE LOSS OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT

www. StartEngine.com is a website owned and operated by StartEngine Crowdfunding, Inc. ("StartEngine"), which is neither a registered broker-dealer, investment advisor nor funding portal

Unless indicated otherwise with respect to a particular issuer, all securities-related activity is conducted by regulated affiliates of StartEngine: StartEngine Capital LLC, a funding portal registered here with the US Securities and

Exchange Commission (SEC) and here as a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FIMRA]), or StartEngine Primnary LLC ["SE Primary ™), a broker-dealer registered with the SEC and FINRA [/ SIPC. You can review the

background of our broker-dealer and our investment professionals on FINRA’s BrokerCheck here. StartEngine Secondary is an alternative trading system (AT3) regulated by the SEC and operated by SE Primary, SE Primary is a
member of SIPC and explanatory brochures are available upon request by contacting SIPC at {202} 371-8300.

StantEngine facilitates three types of primary offenngs:

1} Regulation A offerings (JOBS Act Title IV; known as Regulation A+}, which are offered to non-accredited and accredited investors alike. These offerings are made through StartEngine Primary, LLC (unless otherwise indicated). 2)

Regulation D offenngs (Rule 50&(c)), which are offerad only to accredited investors, These offenings are made through StartEngine Primary, LLC, ) Regulation Crowdfunding affenngs (JOBS Act Title IT1), which are otfered ta non-

accredited and accredited investors alike. These offerings are made through StartEngine Capital, LLC. Some of these offerings are open to the general public, hawever there are important differences and risks.

Any sacunties otferad an this websita have not been recommendad ar approved by any federal or state secunties commission or regulatory authanty, StartEnginge and its athliates do not provide any investment advice or
recommendation and do not provide any legal or tax advice concerning any securities. All securities listed on this site are being offered by, and all information included on this site is the responsibility of, the applicable issuer of such
securities, StartEngine does not verify the adequacy, accuracy, or completenass of any information. Meither StartEngine nor any of its officers, directors, agents, and employees makes any warranty, express or implied, of any kind

whatsoaver relatad to the atequacy, acCurdCy, or L'l'_'ll"||'.'l|.|:'|.E‘I'|:'E!-Z of diny information an this site or the use of infarmation on this site.



Investing in private company securities is not suitable for all investors. An investment in private company securities is highly speculative and involves a high degree of risk. It should only be considered a long-term investmeant. You
must be prepared to withstand a total loss of yvour investment. Private company securities are also highly illiquid, and there is no guarantee that a market will develop for such securities. Each investment also carries its own specific
risks, and you should complete your own independent due diligence regarding the investment. This includes obtaining additional information about the company, opinions, financial projections, and legal or other investment advice.
Accordingly, investing in private company securities is appropriate only for those investors who can tolerate a high degree of risk and do not reguire a liguid investment. See additional general disclosures here.

By accessing this site and any pages on this site, you agree to be bound by our Terms of use and Privacy Policy, as may be amended from time to time without notice or liability.

Canadian Investors
Investment opportunities posted and accessible through the site will not be offered to Canadian resident investors. Potential investors are strongly advised to consult their legal, tax and financial advisors before investing. The
securities offered on this site are not offered in jurisdictions where public solicitation for offerings is not permitted; it is solely your responsibility to comply with the laws and regulations of yvour country of residence.

Califarnia Investors Only = Do Mot Sell My Personal Information (300-317-2200). StartEngine does not sell personal information. For all customer inguines, please write to contact@startengine.com.

StartEngine Marketplace
StartEngine Marketplace ["SE Marketplace") is a website operated by StartEngine Primary, LLC ["SE Primary ™), a broker-dealer that is registered with the SEC and a member of FINRA and the SIPC.

StartEngine Secondary ("5E Secondary™) is our investor trading platform. SE Secondary is an SEC-registered Alternative Trading System (“ATS") operated by SE Primary that matches orders for buyers and sellers of securities. It
allows investors to trade shares purchased through Regulation A+, Regulation Crowdfunding, or Regulation D for companies who have engaged StartEngine Secure LLC as their transfer agent. The term "Rapid,” when used in relation
to transactions on SE Marketplace, specifically refers to transactions that are facilitated on SE Secondary, This is because, unlike with trades on the StartEngine Bulletin Board ("SE BB"), trades on 5E Secondary are executed the
moment that they are matched.

StartEngine Bulletin Board {“SE BB") is a bulletin board platform on which users can indicate to each other their interest to buy or sell shares of private companies that previously executed Reg CF or Reg A offerings not necessarnly
through SE Primary. &5 a bulletin board platform, SE BB provides a venue for investors to access information about such private company offerings and connect with potential sellers. All investment opportunities on SE BB are based
on indicated interest from sellers and will need to be confirmed. Even if parties express mutual interest to enter into a trade on SE BB, a trade will not immediately result because execution is subject to additional contingencies,
including among others, effecting of the transfer of the shares from the potential seller to the potential buyer by the issuer and/or transfer agent. SE BB is distinct and separate from SE Secondary. SE Secandary facilitates the
trading of securities by matching orders between buyers and sellers and facilitating executions of trades on the platform. By contrast, under SE BB, SE Primary assists with the facilitation of a potential resulting trade off platferm
including, by among other things, approaching the issuer and other necessary parties in relation to the pptential transaction, The term "Extended”, when used in relation to transactions on 3E Marketplace denctes that these
transactions are conducted via SE BB, and that these transactions may involve longer processing times compared to SE Secandary for the above-stated reasons.

Even if a security is qualified to be displayed on SE Marketplace, there is no guarantee an active trading market for the securities will ever develop, or if developed, be maintained. You should assume that vou may not be able to
liquidate your investment for some time or be able to pledge these shares as collateral.

The availability of company information does not indicate that the company has endorsed, supports, or otherwise participates with StartEngine. Tt also does not constitute an endorsement, solicitation or recommendation by
StartEngine. StartEngine does not (1) make any recommendations or otherwise advise on the merits or advisability of a particular investment or transaction, (2} assist in the determination of the fair value of any security or
investment, or (3) provide legal, tax, or transactional advisory services,
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VIDEQ TRANSCRIPT

No Video Present.



STARTENGINE SUBSCRIPTION PROCESS (Exhibit E)

Platform Compensation

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital or StartEngine Primary,
as 1dentified in the Offering Statement filed on the SEC EDGAR filing system (the
“Intermediary™), the i1ssuer 1s required to pay to Intermediary a fee consisting of'a 5.5-14%
(five and one-half to fourteen) commission based on the dollar amount of securities sold in
the Offering and paid upon disbursement of funds from escrow at the time of closing. The
commission is paid in cash and in securities of the Issuer identical to those offered to the
public in the Offering at the sole discretion of the Intermediary. Additionally, the issuer
must reimburse certain expenses related to the Offering. The securities 1ssued to the
Intermediary, if any, will be of the same class and have the same terms, conditions, and
rights as the securities being offered and sold by the issuer on StartEngine’s platform.

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine, investors are also required to
pay the Intermediary a fee consisting of a 0-3.5% (zero to three and a half percent) service
fee based on the dollar amount of securities purchased in each investment.

Information Regarding Length of Time of Offering

Investment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the offering
period to change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any reason. Once
within 48 hours of ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any reason, even if they
make a commitment during this period.

Material Changes: Material changes to an offering include but are not limited to: A change
in minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management, material
change to financial information, ete. If an 1ssuer makes a material change to the offering
terms or other information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline, investors
will be given five business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If investors do
not reconfirm, their investment will be canceled and the funds will be returned.

Hitting The Target Goal Early & Oversubscriptions

e The Intermediary will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hat

25%, 50%, and 100% of the funding goal. If the 1ssuer hits its goal early, the issuer can
create a new target deadline at least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the
new target deadline via email and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours
before the new deadline.



Owersubscriptions: We require all issuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be
possible if: 1) it vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement requirements
(and they do not have the requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach $5M in investments.
In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the discretion of the issuer,
with priority given to StartEngine Venture Club members.

[f the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering
amount at the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment
commitments will be canceled and committed funds will be returned.

If a StartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may
conduct an mnitial closing of the offering early 1f they provide notice of the new offering
deadline at least five business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material
change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the investment
commitment). StartEngine will notify investors when the issuer meets its target offering
amount. Thereafier, the issuer may conduct additional closings until the offering deadline,

Minimum and Maximum Investment Amounts

[n order to invest, commit to an investment or communicate on our platform, users must
open an account on StartEngine and provide certain personal and non-personal information
including information related to income, net worth, and other investments.

[nvestor Limitations: There are no investment limits for investing in crowdfunding offerings
for accredited investors. Non-accredited investors are limited in how much they can invest
i all crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The hmitation on how much
they can invest depends on their net worth (excluding the value of their primary residence)
and annual income. If either their annual income or net worth is less than $124,000, then
during any 12-month period, they can invest either $2,500 or 5% of their annual income or
net worth, whichever is greater. If both their annual income and net worth are equal to or
more than $124,000, then during any 12-month period, they can invest up to 10% of annual
income or net worth, whichever is greater, but their investments cannot exceed $124,00().



EXHIBIT F TO FORM C
ADDITIONAL CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

|See attached)
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The State of Pashington

Secreté of State

I, KIM WYMAN, Secretary of State of the State of Washington and custodian of its seal, hereby issue this
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
to
CHARRON FAVREAU, SP.C.

A WA SOCIAL PURPOSE CORPORATION , effective on the date indicated below.

Effective Dater 02/11/2019
UBI Number: 604 378 362

Given under my hand and the Seal of the State
of Washington at Olympia, the State Capital

S Upro—

Kim Wyman, Secretary of State
Date |ssued: 02/11/2019
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FILED
Secretary of State
State of Washington
Date Filed: 02/11/2019
Effective Date: 02/11/2019
UBI No: 604 378 362

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
CHARRON FAVREAU, S.P.C,

ARTICLE 1
NAME
The name of this corporation is CHARRON FAVREAU, §.P.C,
ARTICLE 2
ORGANIZATION AND DURATION

This corporation is organized under the Washington Business Corporation Act (the “Act™)

as a social purpose corporation governed by Title 23B RCW of the Act. This corporation has
perpetual existence,

ARTICLE 3

PURPOSE

.1 This corporation is organized and operated as a social purpose corporation, to the
greatest extent permitied a business corporation formed under Title 23B RCW of the Act. In
pursuing any business, trade, or activity which may be conducted lawfully by a corporation
organized under the Act, this corporation shall pursue the creation of a material positive impact on
society and the environment, taken as a whole, assessed against a third-party standard, from the
business and operations of this corporation (the “General Social Purpose™).

1.2 This corporation is organized to carry out the above business in a manner intended
‘0 promote positive short-term or long-term effects of, or minimize adverse short-term or long-
term effects of, the corporation’s activities upon any or all of

(a) the corporation’s employees, suppliers, or cu stomners;
(b) the local, state, national, or world community; or

(¢) the environment

1.3 In addition, the specific social purposes for which this corporation is organized
(collectively, the “Specific Social Purposes™) are to support education regarding craft and local
liqueur production, and development of best practices in natural liqueur processing, including but
not limited to actions and economic support to:

(a) education about the importance of craft and local liqueur production;
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(b) the advancement of low carbon footprint packaging and corporate activities;
and

(c) economic and social assistance to organizations with similar goals or
objectives.

1.4 The mission of this social purpase corporation is not necessarily compatible with
and may be contrary to maximizing profits and earnings for sharehalders, or maximizing
shareholder valug in any sale, merger, acquisition, or other similar actions of the corporation.

1.5 Any proposed amendments to these Articles of Incorporation that constitute a
material change to the General Social Purpose or Specific Social Purposes identified herein or the
requirement of this corporation to assess pursuit of its General and Specific Social Purposes against
a third-party standard identified herein, must be approved by at least two-thirds of the voting group
comprising of all the votes of this corporation entitled to be cast on the proposed amendment, and

by two-thirds of the holders of the outstanding shares of each class or series, voting as separate
voling groups,

ARTICLE 4
REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

The address of the registered office of the corporation is, 300 Deschutes Way SW, Suite

304, Tumwater, WA 98501, and the name of the registered agent at such address is Corporation
Service Company.

ARTICLE 5
CAPITAL STOCK

The authorized capital stock of this corporation shall consist of fifty million (50,000,000)
shares of Common Stock, each share having a par value of $0.0001 (the “Common Stock™) and
each share having the right to cast one vote in all actions of the shareholders of the corporation;
and twenty million (20,000,000) shares of preferred stock, each having a par value of $0,0001 (the
“Preferred Stock™).

The Company shall maintain records of funds paid by purchasers of Common Stock, [f
upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, the assets of the Corporation
legally available for distribution to the holders of the Common Stock are insufficient to permit the
payment to such holders of the full amounts of funds paid as specified above, then the entire assets
of the Corporation legally available for distribution shall be distributed with equal priority and pro
rata among the holders of the Common Stock in proportion to the amounts paid.

The Board of Directors shall have the full authority permitted by law to divide the
authorized and unissued shares of Preferred Stock into classes ar series, or both, and to provide for
the issuance of such shares in an aggregate amount not exceeding the number of shares of Preferred
Stock authorized by these Articles of Incorporation, as amended from time to time; and to
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determine with respect to each such class and/or series the voting powers, if any (which voting
powers, if granted, may be full or limited), designations, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions relating thereto,
including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the voting rights relating to shares of
Preferred Stock of any class and/or series (which may be one or more votes per share or a fraction
of a vote per share, which may vary over time and which may be applicable generally oi only upon
the happening and continuance of stated events or conditions), the rate of dividend to which holders
of Preferred Stock of any class and/or series may be entitled (which may be cumulative or
noncumulative), the rights of holders of Preferred Stock of any class and/or series in the event of
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the corporation, the rights, if any, of holders
of Preferred Stock of any class and/or series to convert or exchange such shares of Preferred Stock
of such class and/or series for shares of any other class or series of capital stock or for any other
securities, property or assets of the corporation or any subsidiary (including the determination of
the price or prices or the rate or rates applicable to such rights to convert or exchange and the
adjustment thereof, the time or times during which the right to convert or exchange shall be
applicable and the time or times during which a particular price or rate shall be applicable), whether
ot not the shares of that class and/or series shall be redeemable, and if so, the terms and conditions
of such redemption, including the date or dates upon or after which they shall be redeemable, and
the amount per share payable in case of redemption, which amount may vary under different
conditions and at different redemption dates, and whether any shares of that class and/or serics

shall be redeemed pursuant to a retirement or sinking fund or otherwise and the terms and
conditions of such obligation.

Before the corporation shall issue any shares of Preferred Stock of any class and/or series,
articles of amendment in a form meeting the requirements of the Washington Business Corporation
Act, as amended, setting forth the terms of the class and/or series and fixing the voting powers,
designations, preferences, the relative, participating, optional or other special rights, if any, and
the qualifications, limitations and restrictions, if any, relating to the shares of Preferred Stock of
such class and/or series, and the number of shares of Preferred Stock of such class and/or series
authorized by the Board of Directors to be issued shall be filed with the Secretary of State of the
State of Washington in the manner prescribed by the Washington Business Corporation Act, and
shall become effective without any shareholder action. The Board of Directors is further
authorized to increase or decrease (but not below the number of such shares of such series then

outstanding) the number of shares of any class or series subsequent to the issuance of shares of
that class or series.

ARTICLE 6
PREEMPTIVE RIGHTS

Shareholders of this corporation shall not have preemptive rights to acquire additional
shares of stock or securities convertible into shares of stock issued by the corporation,
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ARTICLE 7
DIRECTORS

The number of directors of this corporation shall be fixed by the Bylaws and may be
increased or decreased from time to time in the manner specified there.

ARTICLE 8§
CUMULATIVE VOTING

Shareholders of this corporation shall not have the right to cumulate votes in the election
of directors,

ARTICLE 9
STANDARD OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

In discharging the duties of their respective positions to act in the best interests of this
corporation—including a merger, share exchange, sale of substantially all the assets of this
corporation or similar transaction—the board of directors, committees of the board, and individual
directors and officers of this corporation shall consider the effects of any action or inaction on:

(8)  the ability of this corporation to accomplish its General and Social Purposes;

(b)  the sharcholders of this corporation;

(c) the employees and workforce of this corporation and its subsidiaries and suppliers;
(d) the interest of customers as beneficiaries of the General or Specific Social Purposes;

(€) community and societal considerations, including those of any community in which
offices or facilities of this corporation or its subsidiaries or suppliers are located;

(D the local and global environment: and

(g)  the short-term and long-term interests of this corporation, including benefits that
may accrue to this corporation from its long-term plans and the possibility that these
interests may be best served by the continued independence of this corporation.

The board of directors, committees of the board, and individual directors and officers of
this corporation shall not be required to give priority to any person ot group referenced above over
the interests of any other person or group. For the avoidance of doubt, the board of directors,
committees of the board, and individual directors and officers of this corporation, upon
consideration ofthe effects on any person or group referenced above, may accept an offer, between
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competing offers, of a lower price per unit in a merger, share exchange, sale of all or substantially
all of the assets of this corporation or similar transaction.

This corporation’s shareholders shall enjoy the right, through derivative action brought on
behalf of this corporation, to enforee the fiduciary duties required by this section.

ARTICLE 10
LIMITATION OF DIRECTOR LIABILITY

A director of the corporation shall not be personally liable to the corporation or its
sharcholders for monetary damages for conduct as a director, except for;

(8)  Acts or omissions involving intentional misconduct by the director or a knowing
violation of law by the director:

(b)  Conduet violating RCW 23B.08.310 (which involves certain distributions by the
corporation);

(¢)  Any transaction from which the director will personally receive a benefit in money,
property, or services to which the director is not legally entitled.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any action taken as a director, or any
failure to act, that a director reasonably believes is intended to promote one or more of the social

purposes of this corporation as set forth in Article 3, shall be deemed to be in the best interests of
this corporation.

If the Act is amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the
personal liability of directors, then the liability of a director of the corporation shall be eliminated
or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the Act, as so amended. Any repeal or modification
of the foregoing paragraph by the shareholders of the corporation shall not adversely affect any
right or protection of a director of the corporation with respect to any acts or omissions of such
director occurring prior to such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE 11
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

L1.1  The corporation shall indemnify its directors to the full extent permitted by the Act
now or hereafter in force, However, such indemnity shall not apply on account of’

(@) Acts or omissions of the director finally adjudged to be intentional misconduct ora
knowing violation of law:

(b) Conduet of the director finally adjudged to be in violation of RCW 23B.08.310; or
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(¢)  Any transaction with respect to which it was finally adjudged that such director

persanally received a benefit in money, property, or services to which the director
was not legally entitled,

The corporation shall advance expenses for such persons pursuant to the terms set forth in the
Bylaws, or in a separate directors’ resolution or contract.

1.2 The board of directors may take such action as is necessary to carry out these
indemnification and expense advancement provisions. It is expressly empowered to adapt,
approve, and amend from time to time such Bylaws, resolutions, contracts, or further
indemnification and expense advancement arrangements as may be permitted by law,
implementing these provisions. Such Bylaws, resolutions, contracts or further arrangements shall
include but not be limited to implementing the manner in which determinations as to any indemnity
or advancement of expenses shall be made.

1.3 No amendment or repeal of this Article shall apply to or have any effect on any
right to indemnification provided hereunder with respect to acts or omissions occurring prior to
such amendment or repeal,

ARTICLE 12
TRANSACTIONS IN WHICH DIRECTORS HAVE AN INTEREST

Any contract or other transaction between this corporation and one or more of its directors,
or between this corporation and any corporation, firm, association or other entity of which one or
more of its directors are shareholders, members, directors, officers or employees or in which they
are interested, shall be valid for all purposes, notwithstanding the presence of such director or
directors at the meeting of the board of directors which acts upon or in reference to such contract
or transaction and notwithstanding his or their participation in such action, by voting or otherwise
even though his or their presence or vote, or both, might have been necessary to obligate this

corporation upon such contract or transaction; provided, that the transaction is fair to the
corporation at the time it is authorized, approved, or ratified.

ARTICLE 13
ACTION BY NONUNANIMOUS SHAREHOLDER CONSENT

13.1  Subject to the provisions of RCW 23B.07.040, shareholders will be permitted to
act by less than unanimaus consent of all shareholders entitled to vote on an action,

13.2  Before the date on which the action becomes effective, notice of the taking of such
action shall be given to each sharcholder of record, describing with reasonable clarity and
specifying the general nature of the action approved, stating the effective date and time of the
approved action, and accompanied by the same material that, under the Act, would have been
required to be sent to nonconsenting or nonvoting shareholders in a notice of meeting at which the
proposed action would have been submitted for shareholder action. Except as otherwise provided
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in RCW 23B.07.040, such notice shall be given as follows: (a) if mailed, by deposit in the U.S.
mail prior to the specified effective time of such action, with first-class postage thereon prepaid,
correctly addressed to each sharcholder of record at the shareholder’s address as it appears on the
current record of shareholders of the corporation; or (b) if delivered by personal delivery, by
courier service, by wire or wireless equipment, by telegraphic or other facsimile transmission, or
by any other electronic means which transmits a facsimile of such communication correctly
addressed to each shareholder of record at the physical address, electronic mail address, or

facsimile number, as it appears on the current record of shareholders of the corporation, prior to
the specified effective time of such action,

ARTICLE 14
MAJORITY VOTE

[fa vote of the shareholders is required to authorize any of the following matters, such

matters need be approved by a majority of all votes, unless otherwise specified herein, of each
voting group entitled to be cast on the matter:

(a) Amendment to Articles ol Incorporation;
(b) Plan of Merger or Consolidation or Plan of Share Exchange;

(c) Sale, lease, exchange, or other disposition of all or substantially all of the property
of the corporation, other than in the usual and regular course of business; or

(d)  Proposal to dissolve the corporation.

ARTICLE 15
BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES

No director or officer of the corporation, or any related person of any such director or
officer, shall have the duty (fiduciary or otherwise) or obligation, if any, to offer the corporation
the right to have or participate in business opportunity (within the meaning of the Act) prior to the
pursuit or taking of the opportunity by the director or officer or related person; provided that the
foregeing disclaimer shall not apply to an officer or related person of an officer unless the board
of directors, by action of qualified directors taken in compliance with the Act, approves the
application of such disclaimer to that officer or related person of that officer, which approval may

condition the application of such disclaimer to such officer or related person of that officer on any
basis.

ARTICLE 16

SOCIAL PURPOSE REPORT

Under RCW 23B.25.150 and within four months of the close of this corporation’s fiscal
year, the board of directors shall cause a social purpose report to be furnished to the shareholders
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by making such report publicly accessible, free of charge, at the corporation's principal internet
web site address. The annual social purpose report shall include:

(a) A narrative description of the ways in which this corporation pursued its purposes
identified herein, and the extent to which these purposes were achieved;

(b)  Any circumstances that may have hindered this corporation from achieving the
purposes herein;

(c) The identity of, and process and rationale for selecting or changing, the third-party
standard used to assess the purposes identified herein: and

(d)  An assessment of the overall social and environmental performance of this
corporation against a third-party standard:

(i) applied consistently with any application of that standard in prior
benefit reports; or

(i)  accompanied by an explanation of the reasons for:
(A)  any inconsistent application; or
(B)  the change to that standard from the one used in the
immediately prior report
For the purposes of these Articles of Incorporation, a “third-party standard” shall mean a

recognized standard for defining, reporting, and assessing corporate social and environmental
performance that is

(a) Comprehensive because it assess the effect of the business and its operations upon
the interests listed at Article X, Section 10.1:

(b) Developed by an entity that is not controlled by this corporation;
(c) Credible because it is developed by an entity that both

(i) has access to necessary expertise to assess overall corporate social
and environmental performance: and

(if)  uses a balanced multi-stakeholder approach to develop the
standard, including a reasonable public comment period; and

(d)  Transparent because the following information is publicly available:
(i) about the standard:

(A)  thecriteria considered when measuring the overall social and
environmental performance of a business;

Work Order £ 2019020700080082 - 1
Received Date: 02/07/2019
Page: 8 of 12 Amount Received: $230.00



(B)  the relative weightings, if any, of those criteria
(i) about the development and revision of the standard:

(A)  the identity of directors, officers, material owners, and the

governing body of the entity that developed and controls
revisions to the standard:

(B)  the process by which revisions to the standard and changes
to the membership of the governing body are made:

(i) an accounting of the revenue and sources of financial support for the
entity with sufficient detail to disclosure any relationships that could
reasonably be considered to present a potential conflict of interest.

[signature page follows)
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SIGNATURE PAGE
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF

CHARRON FAVREAU, 8.P.C.

The undersigned, as incorporator of CHARRON FAVREAU, S.P.C,, has signed these
Articles of Incorporation on February §, 2019,

-
-

G. Scott Greenburg, Incorporato
c/o FarPoint Venture Law P.C.
2603 3" Ave, Suite 10
Seattle WA 98121
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CONSENT TO SERVE AS REGISTERED AGENT

Corporation Service Company (*Agent”) hereby consents to serve as Registered Agent in
the State of Washington for CHARRON FAVREAU, S,P.C., Agent acknowledges that as agent
for the corporation, Agent will be responsible for receiving service of process in the name of the
corporation; forwarding all mail to the corporation; and immediately notifying the Office of the
Secretary of State in the event of Agent's resignation, or of any changes in the registered office of
the corporation for which Agent is the Registered Agent.

DATED: & w. /9

Registered Office Address:

Registered Agent;

Signature: gmf"j%ﬁ

e T rabetn A, Smitk, st V.P
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Gf’r‘ ice of the Secretary of State
Corporations & Charities Division

Congratulations:

¥ ou have completed the initial filing to create a new business entity. The next
step in opening your new business isto complete a Business License
Application. ¥ ou may have completed this step already. The Business License
Application can be completed online or downloaded at:

http:/fwnsaw.bls dor.wa.gowl.

If you have any questions about the Business License Application, or would like a
Business License Application package mailed to you, please call the Department
of Revenue at 1-800-451-7985.

If you have guestions about annual reports or registered agent requirements,
please contact the Corporations Division at 360-725-0377 or visit our website
al: hitp:/iwww, sos.wagov/corps.

CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY
300 DESCHUTES WAY SW 5TE 304
TUMWATER WA 98501

James M. Dolliver Building

801 Capitol Way South « PO Box 40234
Olympia, WA 98504-0234

Tel: 360.725.0377
'.'l.l'.l'n.'l.'.n'.HIZ]!-i.'L'J'.Z-].Hr:l'.'n'l:l:lr[li-i

IMPORTANT

To keep your filing status active and avoid administrative dissolution, you must:

1. Eilean |nitial Report within 120 days of the date your corporation or
limited liability company (LLC) was filed. The date of filing is stated on
wour certificate. Please go online to file your initial report at
WWW _soswagov/cofs

2. FEilean Annual Report each year before the anniversary of the filing
date for the entity. The registered agent will be sent notice of the Annua
Report requirement. It is the corporation or LLC's responsibility to file
the report on time even iIf no notice is received.

3. Maintain a Registered Agent and registered office in this state. Y ou
must file a statement of change or designation of registered agent if there
are any changes in your registeraed agent, agent’ s address, or registered
office address. Failure to file changes with the Corporations Division will
result in misrouted mail, and possibly lead to administrative dissolution.

If you have questions please contact our office at: corps@sos.wa.gov, 360-725-
0377, or visit our websi te www .sos wa gowv/corps.
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FIRST AMENDED & RESTATED SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENT

This First Amended & Restated Sharcholders Agreement Agreement, effective as of the
Effective Date (as defined below), i1s made and agreed to by and among Charron Favreau, S.P.C.,
a Washington social purpose corporation (the *Company™), Halliser CB2 LP, as holder of Common
Shares (as defined below) and Series A Preferred Shares (as defined below) (“Ardent™), Kurt
Charron (the “Founder™). and each of the other undersigned shareholders of the Company, and
Senior Preferred Investors and any other securityholder of the Company who from time to time
becomes a party to this Agreement by executing this Agreement or a Joinder Agreement in the
form attached as Exhibit A hereto (each a “Shareholder” and collectively, the “Shareholders™), and
the Agreement amends and supersedes in its entirety that certain Shareholders Agreement of the
Company effective on or about August 16, 2021,

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Ardent, the Founder and the other Shareholders executing this Agreement
desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of providing for certain matters relating to their
relationship as Shareholders, and to amend and restate a prior agreement with respect to the subject
matter hereof: and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein
contained, and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Definitions

The following capitalized terms, as used in this Agreement, shall have the meanings set
forth below:

“Affiliate™ means, with respect to any Person, (a) any other Person that, directly or
indirectly or through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or 1s under common
control with, such Person, (b) any other Person that is an officer, director, the holder or beneficial
owner of more than ten (10%) of the outstanding voting or equity interests, partner or, in the case
of a trust, the beneficiary or trustee, of such Person, and (c) any other Person in or for which such
Person is an officer, director, the holder or beneficial owner of more than ten percent (10%) of the
outstanding voting or equity interests, partner or, in the case of a trust, the beneficiary or trustee,
For purposes of this definition, the term “control™ means the possession, directly or indirectly, of
the power to direct or to cause the direction of the management or policies of such Person, whether
through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

“Approved Budget” means the then-current operating budget for the Company, as
determined by the Board, no less frequently than annually.

“Articles of Incorporation™ means the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Articles
of Incorporation dated as of even date herewith,

“Board™ means the Company’s board of directors, composed as set forth in Section 2.1.
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“Bona Fide Offer” means an arm’s-length offer in writing by a Person who is not an
Aftiliate setting forth a specific purchase price, the form of consideration to be offered and a closing
date of not more than 90 days from the date of the Bona Fide Offer.

*“CF_Major Shareholders”™ means each sharcholder that at the Effective Date holds a
minimum of 1% of the Company’s Outstanding Common Shares, provided that any of them will
remain CF Major Sharcholders only so long as they continue to hold a minimum of 1% of the
Company’s Common Shares.

“*Common Shareholder” means any Person that holds Common Shares.

“Common Shares™ means the shares of Company’s common stock, par value 50.0001, and
any other common equity securities hereafier issued by the Company, and any other shares of stock
1ssued or 1ssuable with respect thereto (whether by way of stock dividend, stock sphit, or in
exchange for or upon conversion of such shares in connection with a share combination,
recapitalization, merger, consolidation or other corporate reorganization).

“Drag Along Group™ has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1(a).

“Drag-Along Sellers™ has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1(a).

“Effective Date™ means March 28, 2024,

“Family Members™ means a Sharcholder’s spouse, parent, siblings, descendants (including
adoptive relationships and stepchildren) and the spouses of each such natural persons.

“Founder” means the Company’s founder, Kurt Charron.

“Independent Third-Party™ means any Person who, immediately prior to a contemplated
transaction, (a) does not own in excess of 10% of the Company’s issued and outstanding Shares (a
“10% Owner™), (b) is not controlling, controlled by or under common control with any 10% Owner,
(¢) 1s not a Family Member of any 10% Owner, (d) 1s not a trust for the benefit of (1) any 10%
Omwmner, (11) an entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with any 10% Owner,
and/or (ii1) the Family Member of any 10% Owner, or (e) is not an Affiliate of a Shareholder.

“Investment Agreement” means the Investment Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2021,
between the Company and Ardent,

“Majority in Interest”™ means, unless the context otherwise requires, with respect to any
class of Shares, the holders of a majority of the issued and outstanding Shares of such class.

“Mew Securities”™ means (a) any Shares or other securities of the Company that are not
issued and outstanding as of the Effective Date, (b) any security convertible into or exercisable or
exchangeable for, with or without consideration, any Shares or other security of the Company
(including any option to purchase such a convertible security); (¢) any security carrying any warrant
or right to subscribe to or purchase any Shares or other security of the Company: or (d) any such
warrant or right.
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“Notice Period™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(c).

“Offer Notice™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(a).

“Other Shareholders™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(a).

“Permitted Indebtedness™ means (a) long-term, below-market interest rate loans made
pursuant to government-sponsored COVID-19 relief or other similar crisis relief programs, (b)
bank or lender lines of credit for working capital purposes in an aggregate amount not to exceed
5250000 and (c) existing debt of the Company outstanding as of the Effective Date that is
refinanced at a lower interest rate after the Effective Date.

“Person” means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability company, an
association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization or a
governmental entity or any department, agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Sale of the Company” means the sale of the Company to an Independent Third-Party or
group of Independent Third-Parties pursuant to which such party or group acquires (i) all of the
issued and outstanding Shares (whether by merger, consolidation, or sale or transfer of the
Company’s shares) or (i) all or substantially all of the Company’s assets determined on a
consolidated basis.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Senior Preferred Investors™ means purchasers and owners of the first designated series of
Preferred Stock issued by the Company that is senior in liguidation priority to the Company’s Series
A Preferred Stock.

Series A Preferred Shares™ means the non-voting shares of the Company’s preferred stock,

designated in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation as “Series A Preferred Stock™, par value
S0.0001.

“Series A Shareholder” means a holder of Series A Preferred Shares.

“Series A Shares Invested Amount™ means, with respect to the Series A Shareholder at any
time, the aggregate purchase price paid by the Series A Shareholder for purchases of the Series A
Preferred Shares then-held by the Series A Shareholder

Sharcholder™ and “Shareholders™ each has the meaning set forth in the preamble of this
Agreement, and includes Senior Preferred Investors who execute this Agreement.

“Shares™ means Common Shares (including any option, warrant, right or similar security
exercisable into, exchangeable for, or convertible into Common Shares), Series A Preferred Shares
and any other duly authorized equity security of the Company.

“Transter”™ means any direct or indirect offer, transfer, donation, sale, assignment, pledge,
hypothecation, grant of a security interest in or other disposal or attempted disposal of all or any
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Shares of the Company or of any rights therein. “Transferred” means the accomplishment of a
Transfer, and “Transferee™ means the recipient of a Transfer.

“Target Purchase Price” means a per-Share purchase price reflecting a pre-money
enterprise valuation of the Company at least equal to the product of (a) 10 and (b) the Company’s
trailing-twelve-month net sales revenue based on sales of at least 50,000 nine-liter cases during
such period.

“Transferring Sharcholder™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(a).

“Unallocated Shares™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(b)(ii).
2. Management by the Board

2.1 Management by the Board. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and
applicable law, the business and affairs of the Company shall be conducted, and all its powers shall
be exercised, by or under the direction of the Board in accordance with the terms of the Approved
Budget. Except as provided to the contrary herein, the Board is empowered and authorized, without
the consent of any Shareholder, to cause the Company to take any and all actions relating to the
business and purpose of the Company.

The Board shall consist of up to five (5) members, all holders of voting stock shall
affirmatively vote to maintain the Board at the minimum of three members, and in connection with
any election of directors, all holders of voting stock shall affirmatively vote to elect and reelect
directors nominated as follows;

(a) The Founder;

(b) Two (2) members of the Board nominated by the Founder, one of whom
shall mitially be G. Scott Greenburg;

(¢) one (1) member of the Board nominated by Ardent as holder of a Majority
in Interest of voting shares then held by CF Major Shareholders, whom shall imitially be Brian
Chow; And

(d) one (1) member nominated by the holder(s) of a Majority in Interest of
voting shares held by the Senior Preferred Investors,

2.2 Board Meetings.

(a) Members of the Board holding a majority of the votes of the entire Board
shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of business of the Board; provided, that such majority
must include the Founder to constitute a quorum. A meeting of the Board may be adjourned by
the members in attendance to the extent that a quorum is not present.

(b) Regular meetings of the Board shall be no less frequently than quarterly
on dates to be determined by the Board, at the principal offices of the Company or such other
place as may be determined by the Board, pursuant to written notice sent to each member of the
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Board stating the date and hour of each such regular meeting. Special meetings of the Board may
be called pursuant to written notice sent to each member of the Board stating the date and hour
of the meeting and the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, and shall be held at
the principal offices of the Company or such other place as may be determined by the Board.
Notice of a regular or special meeting shall be delivered not less than three nor more than 15
business days before the date of such meeting, either in person, by email or by mail, by or at the
direction of any two or more Board members, to each Board member entitled to vote at such
meeting. The members of the Board shall be entitled to reimbursement for reasonable travel
expenses to attend meetings of the Board in person, subject to the Company’s policies regarding
reimbursement for Board-related expenses.

(c) Meetings of the Board may be conducted by means of telephone or
videoconference or other communications equipment as to permit all persons participating in the
meeting to hear each other, and a Board member participating in such a meeting by such means
is deemed present at the meeting.

(d) Matters to be decided or approved by the Board may be passed, approved,
authorized or otherwise decided by the Board by unanimous written consent in lieu of a meeting.

2.3 Authonty of the Board. Subject to Section 2.4, the Board shall have the power and
authority, on behalf of the Company, to:

(a) supervise and manage the business of the Company;
(b)  determine the Company’s Approved Budget;

(c) except for sales of Common Shares provided for under Section 2.3(e) of the
Investment Agreement and Permitted Indebtedness, the 1ssuance by the Company of any additional
equity or debt securities or any material modifications to any outstanding equity or debt securities
previously 1ssued by the Company;

(d) the creation, renewal or matenial modification to any contract or obligation
of or with the Founder or other Shareholders;

(e) entry by the Company into any partnership, consortium, joint venture or
profit-sharing arrangement;

(1) dividends to any Shareholders of any available cash of the Company;
(g) any Transfer of the Shares of the Founder;

(h) any decision by the Company to modify or decline to rencw any of its
Federal and/or state liquor regulatory authority approvals, licenses or permits;

(1) scll, lease, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the
Company’s assets;
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(7) merge, consolidate or otherwise provide for any business combination of the
Company with any other entity;

(k) reorganize or convert to a form of entity other than a corporation; or

(1) make any voluntary filing or consent to any involuntary filing against the
Company under any bankruptcy or insolvency law, or make a general assignment for the benefit
of creditors, or admit that the Company cannot pay its debts as they become due;

(m)  appoint and remove at its pleasure agents and employees of the Company,
define their duties, fix their compensation in accordance with the Approved Budget, and enter into
written agreements with such agents and employees;

(n) enter into, make, perform and carry out all types of contracts, and execute
any and all other instruments as they shall deem necessary or appropriate;

(0)  purchase, lease or otherwise acquire any real or personal property in
connection with or relating to the business of the Company;

(p)  prepare all reports required by any governmental or administrative agency;

(q) file, on behalf of the Company, all required local, state and federal tax
returns, annual reports, and other documents relating to the Company;

(r) cause the Company to carry such property and casualty, liability and other
insurance as the Board may deem necessary or appropriate;

(5) cause the Company to purchase or bear the cost of any insurance covering
the potential liabilities of the agents, officers and employees of the Company in carrying out their
responsibilities for the Company;

(t) make disbursements of money in the ordinary course of business; open,
maintain, and close bank accounts and draw checks or other orders for the payment of monies;

(1) borrow money on behalf of the Company upon such terms and conditions as
the Board may deem necessary or appropriate; execute promissory notes, drafts and other
instruments and evidences of indebtedness, and secure the payment thereof by mortgage, pledge or
assignment of, or security interest n, all or any part of the Company assets; and refinance, recast
or modify any of the obligations of the Company and the mstruments securing those obligations;

(v) deposit any available cash with such banks, thrift stitutions or other
associations as the Board may deem appropriate; invest any available cash in such other
investments as the Board may deem appropriate, and withdraw, pay, retain and, subject to Section
2.3, distribute the Company’s funds in a manner consistent with the purposes of this Agreement;

(w)  selection of the method of accounting and bookkeeping procedures to be
used by the Company:
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(x) defend, pay, compromise, arbitrate, or otherwise adjust claims or demands
against the Company; and

() take any and all other action that is permitted under the law and that is
customary or reasonably related to the ordinary business of the Company.

2.4 Removal of Members of the Board.

(a) The Founder shall serve until his voluntary resignation, death or such time
as holds no Common Shares. and if vacant the position shall be filled on nomination and election
by a Majority in Interest of the holders of Common Shares.

(b} Any member of the Board elected by the Founder under Section 2.1(b) shall
serve until their successor is duly elected and qualified, or his or her earlier death, resignation or
removal as provided herein.

(c) Any member of the Board elected by the holder of a Majority in Interest of
voting shares held by CF Major Shareholders under Section 2.1(c) shall serve until their successor
is duly elected and qualified, or his or her earlier death, resignation or removal as provided herein.

(d) Any member of the Board elected by the holder of a Majority in Interest of
voting shares held by Senior Preferred Investors under Section 2.1(d) shall serve until their
successor 18 duly elected and qualified, or lis or her earlier death, resignation or removal as

provided herein.
3. Issuance of New Securities
3.1 Issuance of New Securities.

(a)  The issuance of any New Securities by the Company must be approved by
the Board, and such issuance shall not be effective until such new sharcholder or other

securityholder executes a Joinder Agreement in the form of Exhibit A hereto, and thereby becomes
a party to this Agreement,

3.2 Preemptive Rights.

(a) Subject to applicable securities laws, each Shareholder holding 1% or more
of outstanding Company shares (“Eligible Shareholder™) shall have a right of first refusal to
purchase its pro rata share of all New Securities approved for 1ssuance pursuant to Section 3.1 that
the Company may, from time to time, propose to issue after the Effective Date, other than the New
Securities excluded by Section 3.2(d). For purposes of this Section 3.2(a), the Shareholder’s pro
rata share shall be the ratio that (1) the total number of Shares owned by the Sharcholder
immediately prior to the issuance of the New Securities bears to (i1) the aggregate number of Shares
then outstanding.

(b)  If the Company proposes to issue any New Securities, it shall give each
Eligible Shareholder notice of its intention, describing the New Securities, the price and the terms
and conditions upon which the Company proposes to 1ssue the same. Each Eligible Shareholders
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shall have 30 days from receipt of such notice to agree to purchase its pro rata share of the New
Securities for the price and upon the terms and conditions specified in the notice by giving notice
to the Company and stating therein the quantity of New Securities to be purchased up to such pro
rata or more at the request of each Eligible Shareholders and election of the Company.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be required to offer or sell such New
Securities to an Eligible Shareholder if the Company would be in violation of applicable federal
securities laws by virtue of such offer or sale.

(¢) If an Eligible Shareholder fails to exercise in full the rights of first refusal
granted pursuant to this Section 3.2, the Company shall have 120 days thereafter to sell the New
Securities, including the New Securities in respect of which the rights of the Eligible Shareholder
were not exercised, at the same price and upon substantially the same general terms and conditions
specified in the Company’s notice to the Eligible Shareholders pursuant to Section 3.2(b). If the
Company has not sold such New Securities within 120 days of the notice provided pursuant to
Section 3.2(b), the Company shall not thereafter issue or sell any New Securities without first
offering such securities to each Eligible Sharcholder in the manner provided above.

(d) The Eligible Shareholder preemptive rights under this Section 3.2 shall not
apply with respect to the following New Securities:

(1) MNew Securities issued to directors, employees, officers or
consultants;

(11)  New Securities 1ssued or issuable pursuant to any options, warrants
or convertible securities, so long as the preemptive rights under this Section 3.2
were complied with, waived or were inapplicable pursuant to any provision of this
Section 3.2 with respect to the initial sale or grant by the Company of such rights or
agreements;

(111)  New Securities issued in connection with a merger, consolidation,
strategic alliance, acquisition, or similar business combination;

(iv)  New Securities issued pursuant to any cquipment loan or leasing
arrangement, real property leasing arrangement, or debt financing from a bank or
similar financial or lending institution;

(v)  New Securities that are issued by the Company pursuant to an
effective registration statement filed under the Securities Act;

(vi)  New Securities issued in connection with strategic transactions
imvolving the Company and other entities, including: (A) jomnt ventures,
manufacturing, marketing, licensing or distnbution arrangements; or (B)
technology transfer or development arrangements;

(vit)  Common Shares 1ssued in accordance with Section 2.3(e) of the
Investment Agreement; or
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(vili) New Securities that are otherwise excluded by a vote or consent of a
majority of the Board of Directors.

(e) The failure of the Eligible Shareholder to give notice of its intention to
exercise its preemptive rights under this Section 3.2 within the applicable time periods provided
for herein in connection with a proposed issuance of New Securities shall be deemed an absolute
waiver of the Eligible Shareholder’s rights under this Section 3.2 solely in connection with such
proposed 1ssuance.

4. Options Pool

On and after the Effective Date, the Company may establish a pool of equity options (or
increase a currently established pool) that may be granted to certain senior management personnel
of the Company for the issuance of Common Units, when and as determined by the Board, in an
aggregate amount up to 15% of the Company’s outstanding Common Units on the Effective Date,
The Board shall 1ssue such options in accordance with the Company’s equity options plan setting
forth the terms and conditions of such issuances.

3. Transfers by Shareholders

5.1 General Restrictions on Transfer. Each Shareholder agrees that he or she will not
directly or indirectly Transfer all or any portion of the Shares now owned or hereafter acquired by
such Shareholder, except in connection with, and strictly in compliance with the conditions of, one
of the following:

(a) Transfers approved by the Board and effected in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Sections 6.2, 6.3 and 6.4;

(b) Transfers to an Affiliate of a Sharcholder in which case the provisions of
Sections 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4; shall not apply; provided, that the Transferee shall have entered into an
enforceable written agreement providing that all securities so Transferred shall continue to be
subject to all provisions of this Agreement as if such securities were still held by the Transferring
Shareholder; or

(c) Transfers for estate planning purposes by a Shareholder to his or her Fanuly
Members or to a trust of which he or she 1s the settlor for the benefit of himself or herself or his or
her Family Members or Transfers by such trust to another trust established for the benefit of a
Shareholder or his or her Family Members or Transfers by will or laws of descent upon the death
of the Sharcholder, in each of which cases the provisions of Sections 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4; shall not
apply; provided, that the Transferee shall have entered into an enforceable writlten agreement
providing that all securities so Transferred shall continue to be subject to all provisions of this
Agreement as 1f such securities were still held by the Transferring Sharcholder,

5.2 Right of First Refusal.

(a) If any Shareholder (the “Transferring Shareholder™) receives a Bona Fide
Offer to purchase any or all of such Shareholder’s Shares from an Independent Third-Party that
such Shareholder intends to accept (whether initiated by the Shareholder or the Independent Third-




DocuSign Envelope |D: 6BTC2ZA83-FADB-48FF-8232-B7T6820TFB36F

Party), the Transferring Shareholder shall, at least 30 days prior to such Transfer of Shares, deliver
a written notice (the “Offer Notice™) to the Company and the other Sharcholders (the “Other
Sharcholders™), specifying in reasonable detail the identity of the prospective Transferee(s), the
Shares to be transferred and all of the terms and conditions of the proposed Transfer, except for a
proposed Transfer of Shares by a Transferring Shareholder pursuant to Section 5.1(b) or 5.1(c).

(b)  The Company and each other Shareholder may elect to purchase any or all
of the Shares specified in the Offer Notice at the price and on the terms and conditions specified
therein by delivering written notice (setting forth the number of Shares the Company or such Other
Shareholder elects to purchase) to the Transferring Shareholder within 20 days after delivery of the
Oftfer Notice (the “Notice Period™): provided, that the Company shall have the first right to
purchase all or any portion of the Shares specified in the Offer Notice and the Other Shareholders
shall not have the right to purchase any of such Shares not purchased by the Company unless they,
in the aggregate, elect to purchase all of the Shares specified in the Offer Notice not purchased by
the Company, The Transferring Shareholder shall not be permitted to Transfer a different number
of Shares pursuant to this Section 5.2(b) than the number set forth in the Offer Notice. If more than
one of the Other Shareholders elects to purchase Shares specified in the Offer Notice, then:

(1) cach electing Other Sharcholder shall be entitled to purchase a
quantity of such Shares equal to the product of (x) the quotient determined by
dividing the number of Shares owned by such Other Shareholder by the aggregate
number of Shares owned by all the Other Shareholders electing to purchase Shares
in such Transfer and (y) the aggregate number of Shares available to be purchased
by the Other Shareholders in the contemplated Transfer; provided, that no such
Other Shareholder shall be required to purchase more Shares than the amount such
Other Shareholder has elected to purchase; and

(11) if any Shares specified in the Offer Notice are not allocated pursuant
to clause (1) above (“Unallocated Shares™), then each Other Shareholder shall be
entitled to purchase an additional quantity of Shares offered in the contemplated
Transfer equal to the product of (x) the quotient determined by dividing the number
of Shares owned by such Other Shareholder by the aggregate number of Shares
owned by all the Other Shareholders and (y) the aggregate number of Unallocated
Shares; provided, that no such Other Shareholder shall be required to purchase more
Shares than the amount such Other Shareholder has elected to purchase; provided
Jurther, that this clause (11) shall continue to be applied and reapplied as may be
required until all of the Shares specified in the Offer Notice have been allocated.

(c)  Any Shares specified in the Offer Notice that are not acquired pursuant to
this Section 5.2 may be Transferred to the Transferee(s) identified therein only during the 30-day
period after the expiration of the Notice Period and only on terms no more favorable to the
Transferring Shareholder than those contained in the Offer Notice. Promptly after such Transfer,
the Transferring Shareholder shall notify the Other Shareholders of the consummation thereot and
shall furnish such evidence of the completion and time of completion of such Transfer and of the
terms thereof as may reasonably be requested by any of the Other Sharcholders. If, at the end of
such 30-day period, the Transferring Shareholder has not completed the Transfer of the Shares as

10
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aforesaid, all the restrictions on Transfer contained in this Section 5.2 shall again be in effect with
respect to such Shares.

5.3 Obligations of Transferees. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
no Shareholder shall Transfer any Shares, unless (i) such Transfer complies with all of the
conditions specified in this Agreement and all applicable U.S. and state securities laws, and (i1) the
Transferee of such securities agrees to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and executes and delivers to the Company a Joinder Agreement. Any purported
Transfer in violation of this Section 3.3 shall be null and void and of no force or effect, and the
Company shall not record any such Transfer on its stock transfer books,

5.4 Sales to Competitors, Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 3, each
Shareholder hereby agrees not to directly or indirectly Transfer any Shares or other securities of
the Company to any Person whose activities, products or services are competitive with activities,
products or services of the Company as of the date of the proposed Transfer. The Company may
impose stop transfer instructions with its transfer agent in order to enforce the foregoing covenant.

5.5  Compliance with Law. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 5, each
Transfer shall be subject to any required approvals by applicable Federal and/or state liquor
authorities.

b Sale of the Company

6.1 Drag Along Rights.

(a) At or Above the Target Purchase Price. At any time, in the event that either
(1) the Board of Directors or (i1) a majority of the holders of the Company’s voting stock (either (1)
or (11), as applicable, the “Drag-Along Seller™) desire and are legally able to accept a Bona Fide
Offer for the sale of all, but not less than all, of its/their Shares, collectively, for a purchase price
equal to or in excess of the Target Purchase Price, then the remaining Shareholders (the “Drag
Along Group™) shall, if requested by the Drag-Along Seller, Transfer or cause to be Transferred,

to such offeror, all of their Shares on the same terms and conditions applicable to the Drag-Along
Seller..

(b) Drag-Along Notice. The Drag-Along Sellers shall exercise their rights
pursuant to this Section 6.1 by delivering a written notice (the “Drag-Along Notice™) to each
Shareholder within the Drag-Along Group no less than 20 days before the closing date of any
proposed Sale of the Company subject to this Section 6.1. The Drag-Along Notice shall make
reference to the Drag-along Sellers’ nights and obligations hereunder and shall specify in
reasonable detail: (a) the name of the Person(s) to whom the Shares of the Company are proposed
to be sold; (b) the proposed closing date of the Sale of the Company: and (c) the per share purchase
price and the other material terms and conditions of the proposed Sale of the Company.

(c) Conditions of Sale. Each Shareholder within the Drag-Along Group shall
make or provide the same representations, warranties, covenants, indemnities and agreements as
the Drag-Along Sellers make or provide in connection with the proposed Sale of the Company.
Each Shareholder within the Drag-Along Group shall take all actions as may be reasonably
necessary to consummate the Sale of the Company, including, without limitation, entering nto

11
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agreements and delivering certificates and instruments, in each case, consistent with the agreements
being entered into and the certificates being delivered by the Drag-Along Sellers. In furtherance of
the provisions of this Section 6.1, if 30 days after receipt by a Shareholder of the Drag Along Notice
such Shareholder has not executed the purchase agreement or such other document which by its
terms conveys such Shareholder’s Shares, such Shareholder hereby (1) wrrevocably appoints the
Board as its agent and attorney-in-fact (with full power of substitution) to execute all agreements,
instruments and certificates and take all actions necessary or desirable to effectuate any Sale of the
Company hereunder, and (i1} grants to the Board a proxy (which shall be deemed to be coupled
with an interest and irrevocable) to vote the Shares held by such Shareholder and exercise any
consent rights applicable thereto in favor of any Sale of the Company hereunder.

6.2  Sale Below Target Purchase Price. If the Company receives a Bona Fide Offer for
the sale of all, but not less than all, of the outstanding Shares at a purchase price that is less than
the Target Purchase Price, the Board shall, in good faith, evaluate such offer, considering the
Company’s future growth prospects and forecasted future market conditions; provided, however,
that none of the Company or any of its Sharecholders shall be obligated to consummate any such
sale. As part of such evaluation process, the Board may, at the Company’s expense, employ the
services of an independent valuation firm with the requisite industry expertise.

6.3 Ardent Tag Along Rights.

(a) If any Common Shareholder (other than Ardent) proposes to sell all of the
Common Shares held by such Shareholder, Ardent shall have the right to participate in any such
proposed sale by selling a number of Common Shares not to exceed a number of Common Shares
included in the proposed sale by the selling Shareholder equal to the product of (x) the gquotient
determined by dividing the number of Common Shares owned by Ardent by the aggregate number
of Common Shares owned by Ardent and the selling Shareholder and (y) the aggregate number of
Common Shares to be sold. The selling Shareholder must deliver to Ardent a notice of the proposed
sale, which shall include any other information reasonably requested by Ardent, or reasonably
necessary to evaluate Ardent’s rights under this Section 6.3(a). Upon receipt of such notice from
the selling Shareholder, Ardent shall deliver written evidence of an unconditional commitment to
participate at the price and on the terms of the proposed sale within 20 days of Ardent’s receipt of
the notice of such proposed sale,

(b)  If Ardent has elected to not participate in the proposed sale (through notice
to such effect or expiration of the 20-day period after receipt of the sale notice) or with respect to
Common Shares the selling Shareholder may otherwise sell, then the selling Shareholder may,
during the 90-day period immediately following the date of delivery of the sale notice, conduct a
sale of the Shares specified in the sale notice at a price and on terms not materially more favorable
to the selling Shareholder than specified in the sale notice. Any Shares identified in the sale notice
but not sold within such 90-day period shall be subject to the provisions of this Section 6.3 upon
any subsequent proposed sale of all of such Shares.

() No selling Shareholder shall conduct a sale of any of its Shares to any
prospective purchaser 1f such prospective purchaser declines to allow the exercise by Ardent of its
rights in accordance with this Section 6.3,

12
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(d) The provisions of this Section 6.3 shall not apply to a Transfer pursuant to

Section 5.1(b) or 5.1(c).
6.4 Sale Proceeds.

(a) Motwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, a Sale of the
Company shall be conducted as a sale by the Company of its assets or the outstanding Shares (rather
than as a sale of such Shares by any individual Shareholder), as applicable, and the proceeds of a
Sale of the Company shall be received by the Company, on behalf of the Sharcholders, and
disbursed to the Shareholders in accordance with the following order of priority:

(1) Jirst, 100% to Senior Preferred Investors, until the Senior Preferred
Investors shall have received an amount equal to the Liquidation Preference
applicable to the equity securities held by the Senior Preferred Investors;

(11)  second, 100% to the Series A Sharcholders until the Series A
Shareholders shall have received an amount equal to two (2) times the Series A
Shares Invested Amount; and

(1) third, pro rata, the remainder to the Common Shareholders.
7. Ardent’s Information Rights
7.1  The Company shall provide to Ardent the following information:

(a) as soon as practicable, but in any event within 20 business days after the end
of each month, an unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its subsidiaries, if any,
and the related unaudited consolidated income statement for the month then ended, such
consolidated balance sheet to be as of the end of such month and such consolidated income
statement to be for such month and for the period from the beginning of the fiscal vear to the end
of such month, in each case with comparative statements for the prior fiscal year and prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(b) as soon as practicable, but in any event within 20 business days after the end
of each fiscal quarter, an accounting of the financial affairs of the Company for the fiscal quarter
then ended, including unaudited quarterly financial statements (including consolidated statements
of income, stockholders™ equity and cash flows) certified by the chief financial officer of the
Company and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) simultaneous with the delivery of the Company’s monthly or quarterly
[inancial statements, as apphicable, unaudited monthly and quarterly reports on certain key
performance metrics (in each case on a by-product basis), as reasonably determined by the Series
A Shareholder, summary profit and loss accounting in the format set forth in the Company’s then-
current business plan “Dashboard”, product volumes and gross profit by product in the level of
detail set forth in the Company’s then-current business plan, and a breakdown of overhead costs,
including marketing costs, selling costs and employee salaries; and

13
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(d) commencing the year after the Company generates at least §5 million in
annual net sales revenue, as soon as practicable but in any event on or before the 120" day of each
year, an accounting of the financial affairs of the Company for the taxable year then ended,
including audited annual financial statements (including consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows), prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

8. Termination

This Agreement shall terminate upon a Sale of the Company. If any Shareholder ceases to
own any Shares for any reason, his or her nights under this Agreement shall immediately terminate,

9. Amendment and Waiver

Except as otherwise provided herein, no modification, amendment or waiver of any
provision of this Agreement shall be effective against the Company or the Shareholders unless such
modification, amendment or waiver 1s approved in writing by (1) the Company, (i1) the majority of
Series A Shareholders, (111) the Founder, and (iv) the holders of at least 51% of all Shares held by
the CF Major Sharcholders. The failure of any party to enforce any of the provisions of this
Agreement shall in no way be construed as a waiver of such provisions and shall not affect the right
of such party thereafier to enforce each and every provision of this Agreement in accordance with
its terms.

10. Binding Agreement

This Agreement shall be binding on the parties, their distributees, legal representatives,
successors and assigns.

11.  Entire Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire agreement of the parties to this Agreement
with respect to the subject matter contained herein, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous
understandings, agreements, representations and warranties, both written and oral, with respect to
such subject matter.

12. Notices

All notices and other communications given or made pursuant to this Agreement shall be
in writing and shall be deemed effectively given upon the earlier of actual receipt, or (a) personal
delivery to the party to be notified, (b) when sent, if sent by electronic mail during normal business
hours of the recipient, and 1f not sent during normal business hours, then on the recipient’s next
Business Day, (¢) five Business Days after having been sent by registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (d) one Business Day after deposit with a nationally
recognized overnight courier, freight prepaid, specifying next Business Day delivery, with written
verification of receipt. All communications shall be sent to the respective parties at the following
addresses (or at such other address for a party as is specified to the other parties hereto by like
notice}):

14
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If to the Company:

Charron Favreau, 5.P.C.
4682 Calle Bolero, Unit B
Camarillo, CA 93012
Attention: Kurt Charron
Email: kurticechareau.us

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

FarPoint Venture Law

2604 3" Avenue, Suite 100

Seattle, WA 958121

Attention: Scott Greenburg

Email; scott.greenburg(a farpointventurelaw.com

If to Ardent (by electronic mail only):

Halliser CB2 LP
Attn: Daniel Gasper
Email: danf@ardent-company.com

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Alston & Bird LLP

90 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10016
Attention.: Blake E. Estes
Email: blake.estes(@alston.com

13. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington without regard
to its principles of conflicts of laws.

14. Severability

In the event that any term or provision of this Agreement is determined to be void,
unenforceable, or contrary to law, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full force and
effect.

15.  Counterpart Signatures

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

15
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[Signature pages follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
day and year above set forth.

CHARRON FAVREALU, S.P.C,

MNarn harron

Title: CEO

[Sigmadure page fo Charron Faveeau Shareholders Agreement]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
day and year above set forth.

SHAREHOLDER:

KURT CHARRON

MNanmes harron

[Sigmadure page fo Charron Faveeau Shareholders Agreement]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
day and year above set forth.

SHAREHOLDER:

HALLISER CB2 LP

DocuSigned by:
r
Tﬁaﬂ@uﬂhl Gasper

Email Address: dan(@ardent-company.com
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JOINDER AGREEMENT

The undersigned hereby agrees to comply with and be bound by the foregoing Shareholders
Agreement of Charron Favreau, S.P.C., dated as of the effective date specified therein (the
“Agreement”) to the same extent as if the undersigned was an original party thereto and, for all
purposes of the Agreement, the undersigned shall be included within the term “Shareholder™ as
defined in the Agreement.

By:

Print Name;

Mailing Address:

Email Address:

In community property states, the spouse of the Shareholder must sign below.

I, the undersigned spouse of the above named Shareholder, after having received a copy of
the Agreement (as defined above) and having had the opportunity to consult with an attorney of
my own choosing, hereby agree to comply with and be bound by all of the terms and provisions of
the Agreement.

Signature

Name (print):

[Ferinder Agreement to Charvon Favrean Shareholders Agreement]



